Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@

CouncilZ
Cabinet
Agenda
Date: Tuesday, 19th January, 2010
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: The Capesthorne Room - Town Hall, Macclesfield SK10 1DX

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. Part
2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons indicated on
the agenda and at the foot of each report.

PART 1 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT
1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal and/or
prejudicial interests in any item on the agenda

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a total period of 10 minutes is
allocated for members of the public to address the Committee on any matter relevant
to the work of the Committee.

Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the Chairman will
decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where
there are a number of speakers.

In order for an informed answer to be given, where a member of the public wishes to
ask a question of a Cabinet Member three clear working days notice must be given
and the question must be submitted in writing. It is not required to give notice of the
intention to make use of public speaking provision but, as a matter of courtesy, a
period of 24 hours notice is encouraged.

Please contact Cherry Foreman on 01270 686463

E-Mail: cherry.foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies or requests for
further information or to give notice of a question to be asked by a member
of the public




Minutes of Previous meeting (Pages 1 - 8)
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 22 December 2010.

Key Decision CE09/10-07 Free Early Years Childcare For 3-4 Year Olds,
Funding Formula (Pages 9 - 24)

To consider responses to the consultation on the proposed early years funding
formula, and to approve the revised formula for implementation from 1 April 2010.

Key Decision CE09/10-31 New Provision for Adults with Learning Difficulties
(Pages 25 - 32)

To consider a new provision for adults with learning disabilities.

Financial Update Three Quarter Year Review (Pages 33 - 88)

To consider the financial position for the end of the third quarter in 2009 — 2010.
Item of Urgent Business - Land Adjacent to Fairview Public Car Park, Alsager
It is anticipated that there will be an additional item of business in respect of Land
Adjacent to Fairview Public Car Park, Alsager. The Chairman will be asked to certify
this as an urgent item for consideration at this meeting on the grounds that an early
decision is required to facilitate this transaction and the unusual adverse weather

conditions have meant that it has not been possible to complete the report within the
normal timescales. This item will be published and circulated as soon as possible.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet
held on Tuesday, 22nd December, 2009 in the Council Chamber, Municipal
Buildings, Earle Street, Crewe CW1 2BJ

PRESENT
Councillor W Fitzgerald (Chairman)

Councillors D Brown, P Findlow, F Keegan, A Knowles, J Macrae and
P Mason

COUNCILLORS IN ATTENDANCE

Councillors Rachel Bailey, P Edwards, A Moran, D Neilson, R Westwood and
L Smetham

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

Chief Executive, Borough Solicitor, Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets,
Strategic Director — People, Strategic Director — Places, Communications and
PR Manager, Partnerships and CE’s Business Manager, Planning and
Performance Manager, Strategic Housing Manager, Communications
Manager and Media Relations Officer

153 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Roland Domleo,
David Brickhill and Brian Silvester.

154 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor P Findlow declared a personal interest in agenda item 9 (Future
Development of Macclesfield) on the basis that he was a Macclesfield
Charter Trustee. Councillor L Smetham declared a personal interest in
agenda item 9 on the basis that she was a Trustee of the Macclesfield Silk
Heritage Trust.

Councillor R Westwood declared a personal interest in agenda item 8
(Review of Housing Options and Homelessness Service) as he was a
member of Wulvern Housing Board.

No other Member made any declaration of interest in any item on the
agenda.



Page 2

155 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos. 11 and 35, members of the
public were able to address Cabinet on any matter relevant to its work, or
to ask a question of a Cabinet Member.

Members of the public were required to give three clear working days’
notice of any question. There was no requirement to give notice of the
intention to make use of the public speaking provision.

No questions had been received and no member of the public present
wished to address Cabinet.

156 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2009 be approved as
a correct record.

157 KEY DECISION CE09/10-32 BUSINESS PLANNING PROCESS
2010 - 2013

The Cabinet received a report which provided an overview of the current
medium-term financial position following further development of policy
proposals and capital schemes which would impact in the financial years
2010/2011 to 2012/2013.

The report sought approval of the outline structure for further consultation
on the business planning process throughout January 2010.

RESOLVED
That, for the reasons set out in the report:

1. the current medium-term financial position be noted;

2. in relation to the Pre-Budget Report 2010, note that the Portfolio
Holder for Resources, in consultation with the Borough
Treasurer, would provide the detailed analysis within the report
to inform the consultation process; and

3. the process for working towards a balanced budget for
2010/2011 be agreed.

(Note: In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 7.2, Councillors A Moran
and L Smetham spoke on this item.)



158

Page 3

SCRUTINY REVIEW - MANAGING THE PROVISION OF SCHOOL
PLACES: REPORT ON TRANSFORMING LEARNING
COMMUNITIES AND ITS IMPLICATIONS FOR CHESHIRE EAST
COUNCIL

The Children and Families Scrutiny Committee had established a Task
and Finish Group to review the Transforming Learning Communities
initiative which had been inherited from the former Cheshire County

Council.

Part of the Group’s remit had been to consider the needs of

Cheshire East in relation to future changes to the schools system.

The Cabinet considered a report which set out the detailed work
undertaken by the Group, together with a series of recommendations.

RESOLVED
That, for the reasons set out in the report:

1.

the development of a comprehensive commissioning strategy for
children’s learning in Cheshire East, in the context of the
Children and Young People’s Plan, be agreed;

any programme of work to address the issue of school places
should sit within that strategic commissioning context;

the report of the Task and Finish Group set up by the Children
and Families Scrutiny Committee be noted;

the Lead Member for Children’s Services and the Director of
Children’s Services be requested to consider how the advice of
the Task and Finish Group, in relation to the desirable attributes
of such a programme, should be taken into account in designing
that programme; and

the Lead Member for Children’s Services and the Director of
Children’s Services be requested to consider how the advice of
the Task and Finish Group (about the management of such a
programme) should be taken into account, particularly in relation
to —

. Engagement and consultation

« Managing relationships with the Church of England Diocese
of Chester and the Roman Catholic Diocese of Shrewsbury

« Ensuring that the programme was flexible enough to be able
to respond to projected waves in demand

. Managing the issues on a locality basis which was sensitive
to local differences and demographics.

(Notes: (a) In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 7.1, Councillor R
Westwood spoke on this item; and



Page 4

(b) In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 7.2, Councillors P Edwards, A
Moran and D Neilson spoke on this item.)

159 VISION AND STRATEGY FOR INTEGRATED CARE

The Cabinet considered a report in respect of a proposed programme of
work being developed by the Council and its NHS Partners.

One of the aspirations in creating two unitary authorities in Cheshire had
been a commitment to contributing to the development of a “virtual public
sector”, which would involve all public sector agencies so that users of
services would experience them as coherent and co-ordinated.

Funding for public sector services in the next five years was uncertain and,
to ensure financial sustainability, it was important for the public sector to
work together.

The report recommended Cabinet and the relevant Boards of the NHS
organisations to agree the proposals and require further work to be
undertaken to develop them and to pursue their implementation.

RESOLVED
That, for the reasons set out in the report:

1. the Executive Summary (Appendix 1 of the report submitted)
which set out the vision and outcomes of the proposed
programme be agreed;

2. a programme of work be carried out to achieve greater and
closer integration between the Council and its NHS partners in
order to achieve both improved outcomes for people who used
services and the development of financially sustainable
services;

3. the Compact (Appendix 2 of the report submitted) which
described the sort of behaviours most likely to foster the
achievement of those outcomes, be agreed; and

4. Officers be requested to negotiate further about the
arrangements for the joint governance of this programme,
submitting its recommendations to a future meeting.

(Note: In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 7.1, Councillor Rachel
Bailey spoke on this item.)

160 REVIEW OF HOUSING OPTIONS AND HOMELESSNESS
SERVICE

A comprehensive review of the way in which services were delivered to
those in need of housing had been carried out. The Cabinet considered a



Page 5

report which provided a summary of the review and outlined options and
recommendations put forward by Andy Gale Housing Consultancy, which
had carried out an independent assessment on behalf of the three former
Borough Councils.

RESOLVED
That, for the reasons set out in the report:

1. the service review options outlined in the report be noted; and

2. approval be granted for the contracted Homelessness and Housing
Options Service to be delivered directly by Cheshire East Council
from 1% April 2010.

(Notes: (a) In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 43.7, Councillors D
Brown and J Macrae requested that their abstention from voting on this
item be recorded; and

(b) In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 7.2, Councillor D Neilson
spoke on this item.)

161 FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF MACCLESFIELD

The Cabinet considered a report which sought approval to develop a
coherent delivery plan for Macclesfield over the next 5-10 years, focusing
specifically on the opportunities to review the plans and agreements in
place for the town centre; realise the potential of the South Macclesfield
Development Area (SDMA); and improve and extend the town’s facilities,
particularly from a retail, leisure, cultural and heritage perspective.

RESOLVED:
That, for the reasons set out in the report:

1. approval be granted to the development of a delivery plan for
Macclesfield which provided a more robust and cohesive approach
for the town over the next 5-10 years;

2. the Council lead, in partnership with its development partner,
Wilson Bowden Developments, in reviewing the options for delivery
of a mixed use town centre development scheme in Macclesfield
within the parameters of the existing Development Agreement,
which included stakeholder engagement and public consultation;

3. approval be granted to the use of £150,000 from the Places
earmarked reserve for economic development over the period
2009/2011 in order to procure —

. External consultancy capacity and expertise to support
the development of the delivery plan



Page 6

« Commercial development advice for the South
Macclesfield Development Area (SMDA).

(Note: In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 7.1, Councillors D Neilson
and L Smetham spoke on this item.)

162 MID-YEAR PERFORMANCE

The Cabinet received a report which provided an overview of the 2009-
2010 mid-year performance of Cheshire East Council.

The report highlighted areas of good performance and indicated those
areas where performance was currently below targeted levels. Where
improvement was required, the report indicated remedial action being
taken.

RESOLVED
That, for the reasons set out in the report:

1. Cabinet note the overview of performance detailed in the report
and considered the issues raised in relation to potential under-
performance against targets and the means by which these
issues would be addressed; and

2. Cabinet note the need to develop further the local performance
targets identified by the Audit Commission in the Council’s
provisional Organisational Assessment.

(Note: In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 7.2, Councillor P Edwards
spoke on this item.)

163 OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE FOR EXTRA CARE HOUSING PFlI

In accordance with Procedure Rule 43.6, the Leader of the Council had
agreed to take this report as an urgent item to enable the Council to
comply with Government deadlines.

The Cabinet had agreed to establish a joint committee with Cheshire West
and Chester Council called the “Joint Extra Care Housing Management
Board”. The Board’s main task would be to consider the Outline Business
Case for Extra Care Housing PFl. The financial situation for the project
had changed and the Cabinet now considered a report which (a) outlined
the process for pursuing PFI funding; (b) outlined the re-modelled financial
position; and (c) sought approval to proceed to the next stage of the PFI
application process.



Page 7

RESOLVED
That, for the reasons set out in the report:

1. the remodelled financial position, allowing the Joint Extra Care
Member Board to approve the re-submission of the Outline
Business Case for Extra Care Housing Round 5, be approved;

2. in approving this remodelled financial position, the Cabinet note
that Cheshire East Council was committed to a maximum
annual contribution of £168,000. This was based on the number
of rental units within the Council’'s boundary, including a prudent
assumption that “Supporting People” income would not be
realised; if this sum were realised, the annual contribution, net
of “Supporting People” income reduced to £84,000.

164 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following item, pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the
Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it involved the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part
1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and the public
interest would not be served in publishing the information.

165 MANAGING WORKFORCE CHANGE

The Cabinet considered a report which provided details in respect of posts
where the employees had applied for voluntary redundancy.

RESOLVED
That, for the reasons set out in the report:

the Cabinet support the decision of the Chief Executive to release the
employees whose roles were listed in Appendix A of the report submitted,
under the arrangements agreed in relation to severance provisions for
employees in the Council.

(Note: In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 7.2, Councillors A Moran, D
Neilson and L Smetham, spoke on this item.)

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.50 pm

Councillor W Fitzgerald (Chairman)



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9 Agenda Item 5

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
REPORT TO: CABINET

Date of Meeting: 19 January 2010

Report of: John Weeks, Strategic Director, People
Subject/Title: Single Funding Formula for Early Years
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Findlow

1.0 Report Summary

1. This report updates Cabinet on recent developments and the response to the
consultation on the proposed early years single funding formula and seeks
approval to the revised formula for implementation as a pathfinder in Cheshire
East from 1% April 2010.

2.0 Decision Requested
2.1  Cabinet is requested to:

(1) Note the response to the consultation on the early years single funding
formula set out at Appendix 2; and

(2) approve the early years single funding formula set out at Appendix 3 for
implementation in Cheshire East as a pathfinder from 1% April 2010.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 All local authorities must implement the early years single funding formula by
April 2011 at the latest. In Cheshire East all of the necessary work with
stakeholders has been carried out and the formula has been revised in
response to consultation. Cheshire East’s formula is ready to roll out from April
2010 and it is recommended that the local authority take up the government’s
offer to become a pathfinder in 2010-11. There could be cost implications in
duplication of work and sustaining providers who have reshaped their provision
in anticipation of the changes if this were delayed by a year.

4.0 Wards Affected

4.1  Early years providers across all wards will be affected.
5.0 Local Ward Members

51 Al

6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health



Page 10

6.1 One of the aims of the single funding formula is to create greater parity
between the maintained and private, voluntary and Independent (PVI) sectors
in the payment systems. As part of the development of the formula, it has
become clear that there are some contradictions in the legislation around
schools being able to charge parents for childcare outside of the free
entitlement. DCSF has advised local authorities to develop their own policies in
this area and the proposal is that Cheshire East develops a policy that will
enable maintained nurseries to charge and puts them on a ‘level playing field’
with the PVI sector.

7.0 Financial Implications for Transition Costs (Authorised by the Borough
Treasurer)

7.1 None.

8.0 Financial Implications 2009/10 and beyond (Authorised by the Borough
Treasurer)

8.1  The single funding formula will be funded through the Dedicated Schools Grant.
In addition, there is an indicative allocation of £1.8m from the Standards Fund
in 2010/2011 to support the extension of the free entitlement from 12.5 hours to
15 hours per week. Based on the 2009/10 budget, officers are working on a
notional budget for 2010/11 of £9,824,000 (excluding contingency and
administration costs).

8.2  There are currently 23 maintained’ and 179 private, voluntary and independent
(PVI) early years providers. A financial impact assessment of the proposed
formula on each sector is set out below.

Funding £ Number of settings % in
variance bottom
compared to Day Main- | Indep- | Play Total 30%
2009/10 PVI Nursery | tained | endent | group IDACI
rate of £3.50 areas
per hour
Loss of >£1k - 6k or more 5 5
- 3k to 6k 3 3 6
- 1k to 3k 9 11 20
Less than £1k 56 22 78 25%
gain or loss
Gain of > £1k +1k to 3k 33 2 10 45 25%
+3k to 6k 23 0 6 29 12.5%
+6k & more 4 13 2 19 37.5%
8.3 One of the main concerns raised by early years providers who anticipate a

budget reduction was the issue around reshaping their provision in time to meet
the introduction of the new formula in April 2010. Guidance from the DCSF
states that local authorities may fund transition costs for up to three years. Itis

' South Cheshire Rural Nursery Consortium includes Audlem, Bridgemere and Wrenbury Primary
Schools. As lead consortium member and budget holder, only Audlem is counted in these figures.



8.4

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

11.0

111

11.2

Page 11

proposed to establish a self-financing transition plan whereby those projected
to have increased budgets will only receive around 85% of the increase to
lessen the impact on those facing budget reductions in year one by 50%. A full
financial assessment of each provider by local area and with and without
transitional funding is shown at Appendix 1.

Should Cheshire East proceed as a pathfinder from April 2010, there are no
significant additional costs expected. As officers have been working with
providers over recent months to reshape their provision around the introduction
of the single funding formula from April 2010, some of these are likely to
experience sustainability issues that would need to be supported financially if a
decision was made to postpone the introduction of the formula to April 2011. In
addition, a postponement to April 2011 could result in some duplication of
effort, for example, the cost analysis of each sector may need to repeated,
which could cost of up to £25k.

Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

The single funding formula will fund the free entitiement to early years provision
for 3 and 4 year olds across all sectors which is the authority’s statutory duty
under Section 7 of the Childcare Act 2006. It will also assist with the authority’s
delivery of its duty to secure sufficient childcare under Section 6 of the
Childcare Act 2006. The authority will commission PVI and maintained sector
early years providers under the terms of contracts approved by the Borough
Solicitor.

Risk Management

The application of the single funding formula could overspend its allocated
budget should participation increase beyond that forecast. Control measures
have been put in place to reduce this risk by setting aside a contingency budget
of approximately 5% of the total indicative allocation.

The reduced budgets for some providers could impact on their short term
viability whilst they reshape their provision. The proposed transition funding
should lessen the impact on these providers and officers will work with them
around developing cost-effective solutions.

Background and Options

In 2007 the government announced that all local authorities would be required
to implement a single local formula for funding the free early years provision for
3 and 4 year olds in the maintained and PVI sectors from April 2010. The
necessary paving legislation for the formula was included in the
Apprenticeships, Skills and Learning Act 2009, which has recently completed
its passage through parliament. The introduction of the early years single
funding formula was welcomed by Members on all sides by both Houses.

In December 2009, the DCSF wrote to all local authorities to advise that the
implementation of the formula had been postponed to April 2011 as a number



11.3

11.4

11.5

Page 12

of local authorities were not ready to introduce the formula. Those who have
completed the necessary work were invited to apply for pathfinder status.

At its meeting on 8th September 2009, Cabinet approved the draft formula set
out below for further consultation.

Factor Application Additions
£ per hour
Base rate One rate to be applied to all children 3.20
Flexibility | No flexibility 0.00
Flexibility within school day (6+ hours) 0.15
Extended day (10+ hours) 0.20
If providing over 50 weeks 0.05
Deprivation | Based on % of children attending setting 0.005
from deprived area
Quality If Early Years Professional (EYP) Status 0.15
If Qualified Teacher Status (QTS) 0.25

The consultation was carried out over a 6 week period to 9th November 2009.
This was through a combination of briefing and engagement sessions with early
years providers and a consultation document that was posted to all relevant
consultees. The consultation and background papers were also posted on the
website and consultees were encouraged to respond electronically. The main
consultees were headteachers and chairs of governors of all maintained
settings with nursery provision, PVI providers of the early years free
entitlement, childminder representatives, all Members of Cheshire East Council,
East Cheshire Primary Heads Association, Unions and neighbouring
authorities. The main issues raised through the consultation process are set
out at Appendix 2.

Early years providers have engaged positively in the consultation process,
mostly through the briefing sessions, which were attended by over 250 staff. Of
the 215 questionnaires that were sent out, 72 valid responses were returned.
The results of the consultation were considered by the Early Years Reference
Group (EYRG) and Schools Forum and the endorsed formula proposal is set
out at Appendix 3. The proposed changes from the draft are as follows:

Increase in base rate from £3.20 to £3.25 per child per hour.

Reduction in the flexibility eligibility from 6 and 10 hours to 4 and 6 hours.

Removal of formula factor for those settings delivering over 50 weeks

Increase in funding for those settings with an Early Years Professional

from 15p to 20p per child per hour, ie, closer to the QTS rate of 25p

e Addition of £2k to the annual budget for each of the 21 settings in
Cheshire East’s rural areas (based on the latest available information
which is the ward sparsity indicator from the 2001 census)

e Addition of 5p per child per hour for all settings judged by Ofsted as
‘Outstanding’

e A self-financing transition plan whereby the budgets of those with the

greatest variances will be adjusted to lessen the impact in year one.



11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

12.0

12.1

13.0

Page 13

The above changes would significantly lessen the impact on the sessional early
years providers, whilst still incentivising the areas of quality, flexibility and
deprivation and meeting the local authority’s statutory duty to ensure sufficiency
for parents of all 3 and 4 year olds who require a free early years place. Two
examples of how the new funding will affect maintained nurseries with different
circumstances are shown in Appendix 4.

There is one nursery school in Cheshire East. This is the setting that would be
most affected if the formula were applied as it stands. However, DCSF has
been very clear with local authorities that costs for these schools will be
significantly higher and should be recognised in the formula. The presumption
must be against closure. Officers have been working with the school to identify
costs and with Finance to identify areas of the budget that relate specifically to
nursery schools. It is proposed to add a lump sum payment to the formula
allocation to cover the costs for this setting.

The area that prompted most debate as part of the consultation was around the
quality factor. The recently published draft code of practice on the funding for
early years recommends that funding decisions should take into account the
Early Years Quality Improvement Support Process (EYQISP). This is a
developing framework that was not possible to incorporate into the funding for
2010-11. However, this process is nationally consistent but sensitive to local
quality assessments and support needs. Officers propose to continue to work
with the EYRG to develop the quality factor around EYQISP to include for the
2011-12 formula.

The local authority must review its formula on a regular basis. Along with the
quality factor, the other area identified for further work before 2011-12 is the
additional costs around settings who have significant numbers of children for
whom English is an additional language. Whilst we know that the costs
associated with providing quality provision to these children are higher, there is
not sufficient data available at present to form part of the formula. This data will
be collected in 2010-11 for consideration in the following year.

Overview of Year One and Term One Issues
None.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the report

writer:

e Appendix 1 — Financial impact assessment of individual providers by area

e Appendix 2 — Summary of consultation responses

e Appendix 3 — Proposed Early Years Single Funding Formula 2010-11
Appendix 4 - Examples of impact of the single funding formula on maintained
nurseries

e Consultation files — Contains all responses to the consultation on the draft formula



Page 14

e Implementing an Early Years Single Funding Formula: Practice Guidance (DCSF, July
2009)

o Letter from DCSF and Ministerial Statement — Postponement of the Early Years Single
Funding Formula

Name: Gill Betton

Designation: Policy and Strategy Manager
Tel No: 01270 686502

Email: gill.betton@cheshireeast.gov.uk




Page 15

%0 0Z3- |00 0E3 ] 03~ LIP3 053 |09 03 Bl Gl £7 oo [Nk JIIEIN N A [D00I5-21d SIEISEY
%l - ES LELLF %l - G7 3" BliLF EFi L3 z L 0 Gy 180Es|y| Aasiny Az sdig
%0 03 ZOF LE3 %0 03 7OF LCF TEY IE3 7l [ 0g Gz PREIEERE dnaubAe|d #00ME]d
250 03 G2Z OE3 5500 03 GZC 003 577 053 [ Ll 5 [ Aa15005) ID04IS ald ARs00s
%) EL3 B0F BE3 %ol T3 leF ees ChE £63 Gl zl Il tFl EERET [004IS aid 50N 5 adnuasiy
%00 LEF CEL LT3 %00 Er3 L0E' 423 B LZ3 Gl Gl ¥l I Jabes|y AIBEIN ) AE ] B1BAI G BSNDH UMD |
350 503 BZF L3 550 i CFFCea R Cl B Z L [ U329 JEj0yIS [004JS aid SIR0UIS 8]
%0 ZoL3 Z0E'GE3 %50 HE 028 GoF 00Z' G253 [ i} Lz 95 LOLET LML ABSIN Y A2 S BULY AllES
%l 6013 BCSELT %l 8713 1IGELTF ErF L3 0l ] Ll &7 [EE]IE) [uDge BUDD) Masin Ty Ae |00y I5-ald S[EISEY
%1 olET G09EES %1 (2K COO'RCY |67 REF oz 8l [ EE [EEIEE] EEITEI
%] JEET 0/0EZ3 %7 JBE3 AN CEL'TE3 L F 5l oc [EEE) RIBEINT AEQ SHUENOOA,
%7, TEF3 127 0E3 %7 5.53 15 083 986 673 L) ER 07, L uo3albuo g Aasiny Aed |1EH pIo
%1 FCC3 CCL'093 %1 EEEES [EENEE: 161093 7c [ Cir C7 [EEIE 0043 S-E0d MOUE D S AR 1S
%7, [EEE] 0CSF 623 %7 [EEE] EFC LS 5900073 ! 5 [ i LOLET LN D FIBEIN Y AR ([EH HIEd
%7, 9653 FEL'EES %7 LO0LF GES EEF BEL'EEZ 9% 0z a7 0z Jahes|y dnoufie 4 Ysked spuges 15
%5 [ CHE'CEE % LR 9. CTY EEEE] ! [ |z Gl IEEERIES dnoibAed (sugorIst yleaH Yieqpues,
%7 10973 COR b3 R 7063 [ N 1C [ IE i EEEe) [N ERERINEREER
e 7ELT ETE] %3 ZERF EBC 913 LGE G L3 L g & 08 [EE]iPE] AFSINT Aeg dojIiH
%t 0083 CZOELE %G LB EETNETE: C7ZolE E B [ 7.l Jafes|y Aasinn Aed sas anig
%50 7EC L3 0GR 173 %l E7F L3 Clloes FO0 073 L1 B ol [ LIECUUES FIIEINT 101 J3pLa |
%5 908 L3 77 GES %% 17 I S0S BEF B9 /EF 4 8l LE 0z RG] |00 25-8ld MOGUIEY
%0 NEE |GG CES %3 JER L3 73 CoF COE CE3 Bl L 97, aF [adeqd sawoH |004IS Aagsdn sheq AdOeH
%1 [ TN 5% 1 0ZF L3 COF |73 0C0'0F3 [ ET 7, [ LIEONUES [00435 314 8yddag)]
G YAE] 100 Fi3 %5 0z0°23 FOE i A 4 Bl LE 9z EEEVSEENT |00YI5-8ld B0ELEJD
%0 A 9E0'6L3 %6 905’13 T ERLLE tl & gl 7l yoegpues dnoubie| 4 unjauaig
G T/ 13 027 053 i LI0Z3 [CC 053 CCF OF3 oz E oE [ [2deyd SawoH [004I5-2l 4 AUNUWog [30eyd saWjoy
%G GlE 13 |G GE ¥ %3 Orl'e s 7ii'GEF TEY'EEF Gl £l i7 7E jadeyd sawoH 00435 AJasin K ¥ gni) sheq AddeH
%G BL1Z3 GE0 273 %3 ZEF 3 BLF LF e 0z L GE [aa [EENIE) |00YI5-8.d 5aUDlg Buiddalg
%0 CFZ 23 GIE EF3 [ EED'ZT CFE FrY ETTNE 17 07 o7 a7 [EEIEE] IDOyIS-814 §923 A5ng
%l XA o0 973 %3 [EEN 99F 9FF Col EFs 17 Gl 1E L UIEOpUES 71 SI00435 A5 1 8 U0yah
% EE 990'F93 % 984’23 9. F 733 ZEE] [ 97 [ 9F Jabes|y P11 siaddoy piayykiiy
G FOF 2.3 IOl E53 %50 02073 [ £0/ 053 o ZE 6 [ IEE]NEs] UaHERISAUT NOL3 WS
%G z09'z3 EB0'053 %3 L90'EF 75 053 LBF /13 7E [ SE SOl TEEEREE 24 hunp
%3 L2623 0CF 753 %l JEFES COE 053 ] IS oz o7 FE LIEQUUES AIaEinn AR LU ] Indiin
%5 LOR 23 CIEES3 %0 COFES OCF O3 e oc o7 ¥ 7.9 [adey s sawoy 24 Nuny
%L SEGEF OFL'GE3 %7l 908'E3 LIFGES c09'LE3 gl L LE 9t Uoiegoues Onio SO0 eueleg auy) pue Ng Slead g sajddy
e SFIE3 [EACE il JERES 7CG LEY Cl9IZ3 trl L £7 o [EEIE) AIBSIn AEQ |IEH ANUIE]
%L = [ %71 I 7EC L7 CIO0E3 oz ol 7, [ [EEE) ONI2 SO0 alMuaApy pUE 0005814 SNUBADY
%l 079 73 L90'GLF % e B5F 53 985'9.3F s L FE S 0 yoegpues ABSINY J3LU0 D 501K
5G| orl'C3 O6F GE3 550 95093 [ ] Gl Cl 07, a7 TEEGRIEE] 100435 Alewil 4 AJUNWW0D Yieqpues
%G [ZEE BZFC0L3 %3 180'93 LFE'90LF oz 0013 S 15 0 0 |adey D sawioH Jdaq dald-ald BAON BU3 |
%07 LEFLE3 CCR'OR3 %EE 077 CZ3 91,0013 ORY CLE LC L = .G PRI 100435 AL 4 PIOI0a1D
NOL3TONOD
E|NLLLICOH
alfug e|nwIo 4 8 |6us g00z | 800Z | 800Z sazeld
palaalogd palaalold il [=3 ny whng | pauasifay Ealy Japianld
GLpLng Burwea
2ualawd % | ssuasawg LL/0LOZ ajualawd % | 8Iualama L1/0L0Z 13fpng HBAPILS 40 BN
Buipuny jeuosuel ] Buipnau) BUInLn o [BUDRISUES ] IN0UIAN 0LAE00E bumas yoea 1oy el

| xipuaddy

G003
G203
0z 03

Go003F

bunel palso BupuEsIND

510
SdA3
sjuswaddns Aeno

eaJte paaudap u siidngd

0z 03 Jas0 pUE SInoy g
cLoF [0} JaA0 pUE SInoyY
ooos Aqlguxaly apl

sjuswaddns Aundixed
| s)ed ased]|

LL-010Z 10} Japiaoid pue eale Aq suonjoaloid - ejnuiod buipungd ajbuis sies A Alle3



Page 16

%5 06l L3 08’623 %7 0BE3 [ENEE 089’723 [ zl al ED ABUapryY JauE N |004a5ald pUy ONiD UDoWaYy Aauap|y Jauian
%Z CIE LT COC'TLE % ETENE 08Tl 06L1L3 t [ L CE TSN dnoubAe|d 100035 & d SU8IUA 1S
%50 e G/CELE %G CIF L3 TEC BL3 100173 Bl Il 07, i LENEREET] dnoufiie|4 100025-a0d Asla0gow
%5 79413 080'EE3 %05 FZG L3 7F8 FEF BlLE'EES 9] L 0 i eIV 100435 ASIUSY 1 BRISALUNS
%0 EEINE GCC CEX %3 N oo Coy CEL'CER & gl 97, s TUCIEINL ABEINT AR T IOJSINU
%57 [} CCLE3 % 7 500713 09963 T L [ i Co IOIEINLY Sa i - AaEINN AEQ MOgUIE
%l 7 BrE L3 N %37 16813 [HYE [ E B E 79 Aalapry JauE N AJBSIN Aeg Aalaply
55 CEE |3 BO0'EF3 %59 LPE'L3 0ZF EFF B0 L3 9z 7z £7 aF PACLEINLY AI3sinp |00Yag ald yba yhbiy
G FOE 23 CCC RC3 %G e OCE BG 7Cl IG3 5 L L7 0E IOIEJNL 100435 814 uopahg
%5 0Z0'E3 201’653 559 ESGEF LF3 GG 280'953 17 LE 25 7ZE UL 100425 30007 L0JSI0A
% LB EF Fr0 L0LE %5 195 73 gzl 1013 TN BG SF £l L5 PACIEINLH MaSIN Y |D0YI5-814 U0Eag
QH04SLNANY

iE iE] iE] 0 0 0 L L] FAFSITIN AE(] ULE 4 UBEIS) 8004]

555 877 63 For L3 550 |- 9GF 813 951'G913 759'EBL3 85 i 03 Ol ELETR, MBSINTY 13J5UILESIAN
55 - CCC |3 OCF OF3 550 EES COE FF3 [ 15 7 LB [ ELETS] 00425814 YD gL
55 ENES FOIEET Yol - LIEZ3" R FEDFET oz [ C7, a7 EETR, |00415-8l4 LUojbulser
Yt FOFa [eETE] Yol HiEES [E¥TE L7693 E E gl 0z ELETR] |D0Y3S 81d SpUaL15i4
550 1013 CJC 103 % - £O03- [EEE 151193 o cE Cir [ EER, LOALIABLIS 1B E1BIS Bl
%0 L[E3- ITF 073 ] £03- 017 OF3 EIV OF3 14 0z oz Co ELETR] FBEINN AEQ a|008d 8l
%l B0E3 il Fr3 %l E9E3 B6L P 9EF FF3 L& 0z £7 0g EIETR, 00425 ald 198415 YHaN
%1 0l/3 61013 %7 Cra3 o908 LG Zo0 153 4 gl ¥ [ ELETR, I00035 -804 AIUN W0 D) HUBqaued
%1 7703 [ %1 1963 FEENNE AT tF 15 ¥ i EETR, jo0yas-ald [leyuaddod yaunyg
G zzl L3 7503 %0 Z0z L3 1TC Go.F CHl Fos Tl 5 £7 G5 ELETR] FIBSIN ] Me 5 HaJpIg) SHUIL
%7 FEL'LE EEENEE] % [ EEENEE EEEE s 0z [ GE ELET, Alasinp Aed s1e1s Juiiug
%L S SR %E ZGE L3 OZC L7 CIOCrS 4 Il iz 0z ELET] dnoiGAEld SI8lad 15
%3 17913 985’623 %l FLE L3 EC8 BLF EaE] 4 Gl gl R Al 1004358l d BLOJIIA,
%l 668 13 LG LTF %6 GEZ 3 902'8C3 70923 Bl g gl g ELETR, juiog Bupels
[ T GLZCZ3 %6 N 9%z God FON'CEE El B cl OF EIETR, (A ma1d) Aasinny Aeq sjeIsey
%9 ziT T3 NRE [ e EIG TR 006’653 74 ET cE 15 EIETR, MBSINN ABT Uled abpug
%5 Gl973 BEF 153 %3 s 796 |GF Cle'ars 4 [ Zr [ ELETR, |D0YI5-2U g SMO|lIAY 34 L
%t ZeZ e R %G [EENEE 068'883 £20'583 LG CE [ G amald Aasiny Aeg saunis buiddals
%G EEFEF 814593 %3 GE0 73 [EINEE EEE] EF LE S [ Al (LOJ5EISIAA) AdBSIN | Bl L
%3 7B0E3 031'co3 %l LEC'FE 0cg'coy EalEE] oo 57 iz 0l ELET, Aasiny Aeg g aydaug abipo] aulg
N ] FEC 093 3 R 125 193 0oF 953 0c 5l T 7ol EETR, SWEIT - SAUSINK PaJIUNEN T
%55 [T f6L'B83 % | 0/9'83 GEF B33 Fo8 083 9f EE il [ eI, U370 & UaJpIyD Ho0dga|goad e 213
%7 LRO /3 OFS b3 %5C7 COZ 63 0C0 OF3 TG/ OE3 £z Cl 07, a7 ELER, 00435 AU d plalaqen
[ DIV 63 [T [T LGLLLT OCOGLLE 59090013 o Co 0. [ EIETR, BIUAD SURIPIY D eyuaddo g squow e D13
%5 G670 L L3 FiGLELT %0 T EAE FZG GELT G75 9713 89 55 52 BF ELETR] UDJSEISIAY 3|[BLI31ER B
%11 [T Ak 3501 T EEE; FCCOET oz [ 07, a7 EIETR, _ |004JS PO0M}Ia3g
%9 | Brl Fe3 LEG BLLF i | Ol 823 76l 813 BB 6FL3 0L o] 66 0l ELETR] BUILBD 5 UaIPIYD 15844 POOAUBALN 1B D15
%L E 907 823 COBFOLE %Er F3LEES £oo'R0LE FRY'9.3 £C Cr 7o .G ELET, amal D 10003S ARG JI00E D SAE N 15
AL 1GZ BC3 JOC 1013 %07 LGz CC3 [T OR0CL3 I &5 4= 7.G ELETR, [0000S AJELIL S USR5 UOJSEIEIA,
%66 LG8 803 9/ E0LF %G EFA EET BES'B0L3 CHE'FLF 05 LG [ 75 EIETR, |00Y25 Alasinp g Adeuld ybnoiogsuies
LAE TG Ge3 e %01 JCIFES CCOOLLE DAD 0.3 7 0% 1] 7.C ELETR, [00435 MBS pJopabony
% E Or0' 263 [T 0t [AAEE; SRECLCE [T [ ] 55 [ EIETR, 100425 AJEUIL 4 unjybia]
IMIHD

%50+ 5LE 73 ZAEEE] %01~ EEDR3- =N 059153 oz 0z 7, 7.5 [EEEe] 00435 AL S SpIRULEW
ol FRE |3 905 B53 ol - 756 B3 B LGF OFG G535 = 97, 7E GE PEEEE |00UI5-8.d UEd Jajad
5 EIENER [EE] %0- EEEER JE0° 9% 8599 +O3 s 4 cE = J1afes|y 100435 AlRWLd ALBgUED
%l CrRa 050 Co3 L 50 13- TEE CO0 953 CF tE EE [ UIEORLES dnN01S) [000I5 -8l d YUOm|J
% - 0543 EEY'B53 Yol BAF |3 585 /G3F £BE'653 [ L7 i 97 YaLma|ppI |00435 ald SOy Ao |
55 5203 FLE 023 550~ BCZ 13- COOGLY [N E E T i PEEIGEEEE |004S-20d LBl Je|0yag
a7 | BG3 PRI GLE Yl - EEINES ELLGLE AETE El 0l cl 0z LIEQUUES BEEER
- GLGF GO 653 e Bl 13- 053 853 OF8' 653 ir oF 55 75 [EEES) |00YI5-3.d A3|SS0W
% |- F0G3- RCE 753 .- EIES [EENEE 008’753 i o Ci 0z LIEQNUES |00UIS-21 4 HI0[330A,
- LiFE 197 993 - ESR3- 58/ 593 BE.'993 8 87 Aa EE PRI MBS ARQ MOCUIES
%] - [EEER 709093 %1 - 1003 EENEE; EITEE] i 57 i [ [EEIE) dnouBAe|d 5414+ 3815
o] - [ LG Fr3 %] - kS R 167 CF3 4 0z o7, ol Jafes|y |00475-8.4 al3Wa g
%l - EES ZEF B3 %ol - 0lF3- {80 803 155 B3 ¥l El L7 L 213 |ppIR MTEINN MEQ SpUNDY 5 S0Ed |
550 kS OCO'7ES 55| - 0973~ FOE LCF 7LLZEE &l Cl C7, 1t Jafes|y Algsini Ae g ajeAlld SENOH Um0 L]
a0 CE3- 59 GF3 %l ES [EEETE FoE GF3 57, E7 FE 0z J1abes|y LUEST QUE ARl NOHED S




Page 17

% - L ZTE- A %l - TrtE- B0F oF3 e 4 8l i 57, L2 LAGUE 1 &, aUUY 15 ) slamaluns
%t~ ZTl3 LBZ'E3 %oi - EFT3- BCl'E3 ZOF e L i g8 9z [E SEN0H 8] Wajpny
%0 03 EFl'Br3 %0 03 Erl'Brs Bl arF £ 7 7 0z L2 LiJUE 1) Aasinp 100U4a5-a.d slabuy amn
%T LTLF Pl G %E GiFL3F £94'G3 ETEEE G G i LE L3 LngUE 1y ABsInN AEQ SIN0QEpUNOR
%l TRE L3 921123 %E £853 ET T CEEGLF Gl Ll LE [ LI LAJUE 1) dnoUbAL|d 100U25-80d ANguala,
%G Coi'l3 RS Yol 605 L3 CCO'CES are FEF [ Ll 6l ZZ L2 LAJUE 1) ATy SOLNOS
%8 T=EE BLEFT3 %ol 8/9'13 Bl FE3 % gl 0l \Z |E Angung ABsIN W A ] sbipaH As|quielg
%G 958’ L3 790'0r3 %3 EBL'TS 06E'OF3 L7 8EF [ Gl 7E 0z L2 LAMJUE 1) 100435 81 g ANOUNCAA,
% | N 01z 413 % | LB L3 ES 0ZE Gl g8 G £l £l LI LAJUE 1) AJJEINN AR S E123033
%G EEL'EZ N EE] %9 COO'EF L' F93 970’1 9% 6E LE [ ChH FEIEEY AISINN SPURINOOAR,
%3 B0F 3 EGY 8L %l GBI G LEV 6L EAE iz f7 5 id L2 IAGUE 1 P11 51004 25 ASIN 1 2UI0Y2AN
%07 LITFLE GCE PR3 % AETE £.8'083 7o0' 0L g ZE 05 75 L2 LAJUE 1) 100435 ASEIN W AUE AJE WU S SPIRUIIIN
HOIMLNYN

03 03 03 0 ] 0 ar [SENCEERET HnI) aAyaag uajdn

%l - 004713 840 10LF Yot i LOY G2 3 L0 G BiFrLLE Ef LE 5 i DIALSEIIE B 00435 AELLG HUET S5nd
%9~ 04073 viv OB %E |- Ll - EOF B3 [N gl 0l ED 9z SIECEERET 100425 AILNUIIOD §5040 U404
%ot~ G0z CED 9G35 Yol 0E0 Fa- 0Z0 v53 [EEEEE [ 0z ZE 7C FIETCEERET |000I5 AMEW U Paply 30 10UISI0 & UOHER
% - ES 928 3 Yo~ [FENES 666 E6F EETE [E] EE £l 7E e R |00Y35-3.d [EADIAIES
%E - 093~ GVC Cia %9~ 0zZC 13- 6OF bia GO0 9% 0z El CH [ SIENEEIREE 00035 aid MOUIE
%~ £EL3- COF 63 %G~ 197 13- LEL'BE3 861 08 4 Ll e ZE SIECERRET 100425-ald saUEr 1S UoIns
s D 06z B85 Yot~ LBV L3 VEES GO0 6EF 65 EF GG il EETEEIREE |00405 ald SUEQ)Y 15
% t7= i3 997’613 Yod - LTb L3 T 08661 Gl 0l cl [ PIALSEIIIE 00435 ald akbe|lA pioyayD
%l - [EES 828 153 Yot~ TOE | 3- R s [ EH4 G 77 LoIELNog Aasinn sda15 181d
% £ECE- [ Yalr- FEES L6L'ZES 958 EeF L 0l Ll [ [ENCERRET dnoJbiAe|d 5104 JUjEd
s GOET- Gil 4B Yot~ EES 018 9ES T T, 4 E ET SIENEEIREE I00L25-21d AOOIGUTI0S
% - Zle3- 0EF 623 % - ECr3- 8l 623 AT gl Zl 4 ge [SIETCERRET 5(00435 AREIN N UOEaLInG 4
%0 9513~ 120 9EF %ol - TLE3- Li0'9EF £8E 9EF 0z cl 62 95 [SIENCEERET A3SIN N Aeg sDemAeds amm
%0 90173 0EC L 73 %l - L1753 CIV LFS EEENE a7 £ Gz, g e R 100435 ABSIN UOSSaIU0 W saudls ouddals
%1~ 693~ 108713 %l - EE13- K S g9 G 5 zl [SIECE R 0035 add aaulm L
%0 753" EE %l - 013" EEAETES HEEE [ i cl 0r SIECERRET Adasun iy Ualetiapury auy |
%0 0E3- FRE TES %0 093- FOE'TES FiF CEF [ 7l [ 85 [SECEERET AIEINN AET PIRNEIIIIE W
%0 03 090'FL 3 %0 03 090'vL3 09071 % g8 i 7l ED uolaulog dnoubiAg|d 100425-30d 0S|I
% 7713 |G 2 % Firl3 ] G2l Cod cl i 8l = [SIECEERET 100435-ald AepAaH
%l LIP3 El6 93 %ol LGE3 £CR 93 999 90 F 54 ED 7z 0z SIENCERRET SR ENEEE]
% FGEF 990'0L 3 % 9113 671013 N G 2 G 75 [SENCEERET MasIn N Aeg spiladng
%T e Bi00E3 %T £093 891 03 GOC 6EF 0z [ 0z [ LD0IaULELAL 53414 JaNUN SJA3MOLNS
%T IRCT EOE'EES % L1043 SO0V EES ENAA=E [ Zl 0z £C [SIECEERET {17 SaUnjuaAny AL
%, BLLF 082 053 %, EiEE] L7 053 80C 6FF 3 [ ge 9z SIENCERRET anoJ9) 00435 -2l d ASLILA,
% | GELF 944’093 % 8763 GG 093 106 65F L7 LE 9t g [SENCEERET |00YI5-2Ud SLYOT 1S
%T Vit L3 £El 853 %E BGF L3 Svf 853 G 4 CF |7 77 EE 75 DILSEIIE D045 3A0JD) LSy
%t BOF L3 B0’ O3 Yoty 959’ L3 967 OF3 09 88 4 6l £C [ uolauiog 100425 14 J5I0U1a W uoiulog
%8 A 95l 03 %3 vl L3 e e L1 Z1 [ [ UUOMEMES) OnoJBAEId 100U05 21d ULOMEMED)
% EENES 9/ 8L % 084’13 EFGBLT [EIETE; 95 (a3 05 [ [SIECEERET 00435 2 d HUEG A
%G T 0EE O3 %3 CIC T3 60.973 Vol Pra 9 0z CH4 ] SIENEEIREED M3 sy Ae g Angisald
%t LTS EEEE %G 8/9'73 G0F 553 (S [ [ 0t [ SIECEERET 100435 ald $llIHUaals)
%G | 8E9 Cs ZGl 03 %9 | A COZ 0Z3 EEE i} E] ER Zl LEEE tnoJbield 100415-814 SUMHO0E A31508
%L L8B3 7E8'Gr3 %8 LBE'ES TEE'OF3 GEG T FF 0 [ EE EE] [SIECEERET SjuLCion 4
%7, 6L6 L3 TiT4il3 (44 CEOES EEaES EFE P13 7l & L 09 SIENEEIREED MAEITN AEQ AJEALD 5843300
%9 091L'E3 R %ol R R [EE ce £2 Lt 865 SIECEERET Y Adasin A sdeas
%3 A 85C 193 Yol TRL B3 ZCH 193 EEREEE 6E |E GE EE EIENEEIREE UoIEU0aUA] - SaUasIn K pajil UN STy
%3 JEAEES 660G %6 Fre' B3 9/9'GF3 Zel L FF a7 0z LE 04 [SIECEERET 7 AJ2SIn N Mg g uapetlapury ay |
%9 EO9'EZ 910993 Yl Fiv F3 £89'993 HAEE [ iz v i [SIETCE R 100435 JIEH Yaaag
%9 £8T C3 cg:' 0013 %ol ClZ'o3 I BT 05 85 EE 0 SIECEERET 100435 & U au L
%01 TR gLL0LLE %ol l TEF LLF EEELLLE LOF 003 95 i 19 84 [SIENCEERET 100425 Adoud uoidn
%7 755 073 8r0'963 YT e 641 FES Ci9' 66 96F GLF 15 0r 05 75 [SIECEERET 100425 AdEwIld 30 Angisald
a131453100 VN

- 9E L3~ T - £L23- A TE] EE 5 g8 Ll 19 PUOLEINU ABSINN A g albpoT 3o,
%0 03 |27 B3 %0 03 72 GL3 |27 GoF 8l [ 6l ir DILEINU MBS A $50J70 pay salddod
% | |63 FIEETES % | 2013 LEG G T 0z Gl 77 [ PA0LEINU dnoubiAe|d |00YI5-ald 132U}5 55330l
% | 713 [T % | Trl3 Coo' L3 FLE L LS El £l 0 19| FUOLEINL DAY A3MOIY S
%E AT 196 093 %e EN EETNEES N [ Iz 9E 75 DOLEINUY MIEINN PUE 00D S HEd JOUE




Page 18

“Aauednann pue Ageneas uo pased Buipung o uoipodoud e asEad 1ey]
S3LBEINU paueId e W Jauyin a4un 'saded ajgeiese ud paseq Guipung s IE saa@dal WNIL0SU0d 8y "Saquaul 83Ul aUl 40 JIeUad uo Yels Alasinu aul sAoidwa ' wWniliosuod ayl Jo Jaguawl peal aul se ' walpny
Angualag, pue aJawabipug ' waipny - WNUosU0D saLasiny [einy aJUsayD uinos

‘30| leAE 10U S EIED [2oU0ls I pue sBumas mau ale Alasinp A g ule - a9 adod pue adyaag uodn

‘sfumas uapuadapu) ¢ Aeunios,

£ a]EAld OM] USaM]a0 1IdS 30 0S|E UED JUSWa[IUS 8al) 8U] paisyo ake SUDissas uoollaye pue Buiuow i sa0e|4 palaisifay palsio syl paanxe Aew Gumas e 1e Juswaiiua aa.y ayy Buiiied uaipiga Jo dagquinu sy

'sa]op

ZBC BGFS SVE oGL 65 | EEELE 1051963 £oF 762 63
Yl S [ Yl - 7ol o 00l e |57 0E3 5] ED 4 Iz OIS AT |00L15-81d AUET M35
- FEER 00F CF3 Yot~ S LITCr3 CRF P73 17 8l e 7C EEIR AJIEINT UE [000I5 81d [BAILIED
%1 - COS3- BIETF |- 0193~ CI0TFS CEY TS 17 0z 9z oz IEEDR Auasinp uossaiiop abuels @deqyd
- EES EETETE Yl - EYES BETE IEATE] 5 9 7l I W05 WA FBSIN N e[ EOUOH JO 85M0H
%0 |63 I %] - TS 47003 BOS'BE3 L1 Ll oz 15 ERIR ADNE WILA, SSAUI (BI0L - S3UBSINN PajulUn Ty
%00 EEER e 1 - kR CRC 203 [ILZES Il [ £z = LUOJpUE H ABEIN N A2 J PIELIID B L
%0 843- BT EFS %0 1G53 LLEEFS EEEE [ 6l LE 0z abp3 Aapap)y dnoubAe|d |0oyag-ald abpg Aapan)y
) 713 GG ol ol BaES IR EEAE] 7 Bz G Tzl LUOJAUE H RIBSINT AET SUI00Y 8l
%1 - C73- CCZEX %] - 13- 572 CF 917’ B3 z 0 t [ EDR FIBEINN ABT MOISUIIAL,
%0 L1z CCEZCY %0 orey 0/C5253 FANAE] 17 [ o L6 WO LA SRIEILEWWINE - S8USSINY PajWIUNSar
%l [ /GE' GO %l K 9% G9F N EE] L 4 05 BF R |00L35-84d 15IP0UIa MOISU A,
% [T FEC 203 % [k [N ] 5 il 11 0z LuOJpUe H FIFEINN AR 5. UBON
%5 EIGNE: 7CR LT %3 CRL'LY S 916023 7l Ll ER [ IEEDR N0 100035 )0 N0 MIpUN
%l CBE L3 K %, 62913 ECR PR3 [k 9 GE 69 (i3 05 WIAN |004d 5-ald pue A siny Aeg ueag SpUeMED
%50 I 115103 %0 [ [N T Bl [ gl Gl ERIR fdagsin Ae g sh044 und
%0 |7z 03 N %5 71Ty ZO0ZEY U5E'6ES trl ol 4 0 TEER AIBEIN SIUS5 S LIRS UG ausHeD
%l (R EEEE B CO0CS TRG GG [EECE] i3 Iz Cr, i E i EREPERR SIS 10 00005 abp g Adpan |y
%55 GEI T | /785 %3 9/1EF Br. 85 75653 [ IS 7E ] CEER 100435 Aiojeedald MO|SUliA
%50 EAE ETE N CBlC3 COF LG3 [EETE] 74 Gl or CC LUOJpLE H 000435814 MOgUIES
%G G20 T EEEE; %3 GZCCY AR (e I o7 i a5 TEER JUOLLIE|D - SAUSSINN BaPUIUNSaT
%l ZIGL3 EITE B Zoz 73 ENTE T ot RE CE i E i EREPERR 00435 dald sAalhe aul
%55 s ZCY 06 %3 Or6 73 ERE 16T EGF 983 = o B ] EEER |00U2S (€ H [[eUiDd
%50 CLE 73 B %0 084G OFF CO13 [EENTE] oc g ol or EEIR |00LJ 5 =514 Juapuadap] auspysy
%0 0oz oLy 907 . 3 6 | EEE; 990'0. % 950" 93 75 o7 o 75 IEERR 100U 35 ABEINN F AR WL g W02 SGLEIS MO SUI I,
MOTSITIAR
%l 9E93- BOB EFF o AR B2 BFF GG FP3 5, Gl oE 0z L0jUADd |00ya5-ald sauns Auddals
%l - 10G3- FEF 0.3 %l S 106 503 L0013 I 6e g e LOJUAD [004I5-ald Sal0H Ay L
%t CRRE- FOE'ELY ) - ErEEER [MEHE 16LELE L E L 0z LojUAD J dnaubie 4 111 JIA D 801
Yol Bloa [EEE Tl - FEF3 CED |73 [T IE [ e oz, LOJUAD g [00035 aid sned 15
%l s G058 63 Yl - s el 0Z0'0ES Gl 7l 7 05 L0jUADd uaLelapuUry sdags5 154
%l - 00z3- Fol 403 %l 00F3- [ CZOBL3 Iz Tl vl tr 31510 JauiTH W07 B|0INg SSEJD) an|g
%0 EHER TEE LT %] - SRCE- [N I |7 Gl 15 i LojUAD J |00435-ald ULed ashoH {003
%l 03 e %ol 03 EVE LC3 EFE LES ! Zl 9z, 7C LEIEe] OnoJBAEId 100005 add 5.6 Japun Aa15I0
%l 03 [T %l 03 tB. LEF 7ol LE3 Bl Gl oE g L0jUADd dnoufAe|d Yangg 15I00Waw Uojufiod
%G I VO 03 %0 06F3 EEEE: 20583 t E 5 Iz Anosald RIBSINN AEQ & ELUEA|D
%0 [N LLOF %3 T EET OFS OLE'BES 77 11 o7 [ LojUAD J paql L ASsIn W 1000335 add 1B H 301507
NOINAOd
- 1B06F 1599013 i |- Bl ToE CHSERT BELGLLE EG LE £5 g8 L3Py 100435 ABUIUG 30 S8UIET 15 Walpny
550~ RCOCH 0RLOCT 371" e DEL'CCE 157 0593 o7, 0z oz 7C LOIUE 100435 AIEWIL S BY A,
55 NS ENEE; ) - 597503 COC'OFY ENEE Lt = e 7C [EIEIE dnoubiAe| 4 100035 ald YIIMJUER
51 - 10893 9/E LT 545 - CICTLE- 0R9 OFY CO0'EFS IE i o 7C Angung dnaubie 4 10002580 d SR AJed
Yol [EES 7ol Fra ok - 96C |3 ti0 bra T 5, 7 GE [ LDIGUETY dnoubie| 4 UDISe| i,
o] - 1073 10803 5,5 103" 0/97.23 FOr B3 o] cl [ 0z LOIWQUET dnoufife|d sea auug
550 |EC3- vor ol 3 ol - [EEER CE0C.3 TGl .3 O CC i ! EIER RBEINT A2 SPUEIES




Page 19

Appendix 2
Draft Single Funding Formula - Summary of Consultation Responses
The following tables summarise the responses to the questionnaires. The text

includes the feedback from consultation events. Of the 215 questionnaires sent
out, 72 valid responses were returned as follows:

Setting Type Issued Returned %
Full Day Care 138 34 25
Maintained Sector 25 9 36
Sessional 52 29 56
All 215 72 33

The information that follows sets out the responses to the questionnaires and
consultation meetings against each of the formula factors.

Base rate

There was a general acceptance that the same base rate should apply across
all sectors, with 79% of respondents in agreement to this as follows.

Agree Disagree Not answered
Setting type No. % No. % No. %
Full Day Care 27 82 4 12 2 6
Maintained Sector 2 22 6 67 1 11
Sessional 28 93 2 7 0 0
All 57 79 12 17 3 4

Responses were higher from the PVI sector and 67% or 6 of the 9 responses
from the maintained sector did not agree with one base rate. However, the
same base rate was not considered a major factor at the engagement sessions
or at the meetings with schools who are likely to be most affected by the
proposed formula. Most felt that the base rate should be higher, although there
was a general consensus that they did not want to lose any of the other factors.
Most of the comments from maintained settings referred to the issue in relation
to their inability to charge for additional sessions, which did not put them on a
‘level playing field’ with the PVI sector.

Flexibility supplement

Although the table overleaf shows that more people agree than disagree with
the way in which the flexibility supplement is determined, there was significant
debate at the briefing sessions and many comments around the inability of
some sessional providers to be more flexible with their accommodation or to
ever be able to achieve the upper payment of 10 hours a day over 50 weeks.
This was not considered to be in the interests of the child. Some providers
indicated that it would be impossible to be able to offer a viable free place over
50 weeks, which made this factor unachievable.



Page 20

Agree Disagree Not answered

Setting type No. % No. % No. %
Full Day Care 24 71 10 29 0 0
Maintained Sector 4 45 3 33 2 22
Sessional 17 59 12 41 0 0

All 45 62 24 35 2 3
Deprivation supplement
More respondents agreed than disagreed with the deprivation factor. It was

clear from those that disagreed that a number did not understand the way in
which the local authority determines deprivation or the government drive to
‘narrow the gap’ in achievement between this group of children and their peers.

Agree Disagree Not answered
Setting type No. % No. % No. %
Full Day Care 22 65 12 35 0 0
Maintained 5 56 2 22 2 22
Sector
Sessional 20 69 9 31 0 0
All 47 65 23 32 2 3

Quality supplement

Only 56% of respondents agreed with the quality supplement. The maintained
sector felt that the quality supplement for teachers should reflect the cost of
paying teachers according to national pay and conditions. However, the main
issue for the PVI sector was that the Early Years Professional (EYP) is a
relatively new qualification which takes some time to acquire. PVIs felt that the
enhanced rate for employing an EYP should equal that for a QTS, to enable
settings to pay at a level which would mean they could retain good quality staff.

Agree Disagree Not answered
Setting type No. % No. % No. %
Full Day Care 19 56 14 41 1 3
Maintained Sector 4 45 3 33 2 22
Sessional 18 63 10 34 1 3
All 41 56 27 38 4 6

Many mentioned that other factors for quality should be explored. It was felt the
Ofsted rating should be included for 2010-11, in particular acknowledging
outstanding settings.

Alternative supplements

Respondents were asked to identify any additional supplements that they felt
should be included in the formula. The following were highlighted:

Additions for being a rural setting



Page 21

Qualifications and experience of other staff members, eg, Level 3s

SEN supplement to cover extra paper work that goes with providing the
necessary support for each child with extra needs.

Customer satisfaction

Number of children with English as an additional language (EAL) attending
setting and SEN number of pupils registered on Early Years Action/Early Years
Action Plus - providing additional support for these pupils has financial
implications.

Ofsted grading, in particular outstanding settings

Accreditation and use of an Early Years Quality Improvement Support
Programme

Attendance on courses

Supplement for charity run pre schools

Meals

Outdoor play areas/facilities

Consideration of rent/rates/mortgage reflecting the quality of the
accommodation

Payment Process

To respond to the introduction of the single funding formula, some adjustments
to the current payment systems were also proposed, ie, reducing the number of
headcounts dates. The consultation showed that only half of full daycare
providers favoured this approach. Many of those at the consultation sessions
did not agree with this change at the same time as introducing the formula.

Impact Assessment

As part of the consultation, respondents were asked to judge the impact they
expected the formula would have on their setting. The majority of settings felt
that the formula would have an adverse effect, with the sessional providers
expecting the biggest impact as follows:

Benefit No Change Adverse Not answered

Setting type No. % No. % | No. % No. %
Full Day Care 8 24 7 21 15 43 4 12
Maintained 1 11 0 0 7 78 1 11
Sector

Sessional 5 17 6 21 17 59 1 3
All 14 19 13 18 39 55 6 8

Transition

One of the main concerns raised by providers was the issue around reshaping
their provision in time to meet the introduction of the new formula in April 2010.
There was a general feeling that there should be arrangements for funding
transition costs for all affected providers. This is in line with DCSF guidance
that states that local authorities may fund transition costs for up to three years.



Proposed for Early Years Single Funding Formula 2010-11

Page 22

Base rate Option 3

£3.25 £8,634,858
Total £8,634,858 | 87.90%
Flexibility Option 2
4 hours and over £0.15 £71,723
6 hours and over £0.20 £362,881
Total £434,604 4.42%
Quality Option 4
Outstanding Ofsted £0.05 £15,474
EY Professional £0.20 £9,866
Qualified Teacher £0.25 £362,718
Total £388,058 3.95%
Deprivation Consultation
% of children living £0.005 £214,049
in bottom 30%
national idachi SOA
Total £214,049 2.18%
Nursery School Consultation
Lump sum £47,933
Total £47,933 0.49%
Rurality Proposal
Lump sum £2,000 £42,000
Classification: Rural
21 settings
Total £42,000 0.43%
Provisional pot £9,824,000
Formula Costs £9,761,502 99.36%
Remaining £62,498 0.64%

Appendix 3



Page 23

Appendix 4

Examples of impact of the single funding formula on maintained nurseries

The following are actual examples.
Maintained Nursery Provider A (fully occupied)

Provider A has a 52 place nursery that is almost fully occupied over the year. Under
the current payment system, they receive £76,098 per annum. This nursery has an
outstanding Ofsted grading and 13.36% of children attending from a disadvantaged
area. The school is projected to receive a budget of £93,477 under the single funding
formula.

Number of places available 52
Number of places filled 52
Ofsted grading Outstanding
% children from disadvantaged area 13.36%
Current budget £76,098
Proposed budget £93,477

Maintained Nursery Provider B (less than half full)

Provider B has a 104 place nursery that is less than half full with an average of 42
children attending over the year. Under the current payment system, they receive
£114,478 per annum. This nursery has a satisfactory Ofsted grading and 20.37% of
children attending from a disadvantaged area. The school is projected to receive a
budget of £89,077 under the single funding formula before transition funding is
applied, ie, marginally less than Provider A that has 10 more children.

Number of places available 104
Number of places filled 42
Ofsted grading Satisfactory
% children from disadvantaged area 20.37%
Current budget £114,478
Proposed budget £89,077




Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25 Agenda ltem 6

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
REPORT TO: Cabinet

Date of Meeting: 19 January 2010

Report of: Adult Services — People Directorate
Subject/Title: New Provision for Adults with Learning Disabilities
Portfolio Holder Councillor Roland Domleo

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 This report highlights the current strategic planning to develop a new
provision for adults with learning disabilities and associated complex
conditions, like challenging behaviour and autism. The new provision
would provide purpose built accommodation to support individual
adults with a learning disability to maximise their potential and
independence.

1.2  Due to the lack of local resources for people with this condition,
Cheshire East has had to commission services for people out of area.
The development of the new provision would enable those individuals
to return to Cheshire East, to be nearer their families and access local
health services.

1.3  The development of this new provision will also be available for adults
with a learning disability and complex conditions coming through
transition from Children’s Services.

1.4  The aim of this report is to transfer the site known as Redsands for the
development of this new provision. The site has been used by
Children’s Services and was vacated at the end of June 20009.

1.5 In order to vacate the site, Children’s Services have undertaken their
own capital scheme to re-house the children previously in residence at
Redsands. This has left a residual unfunded sum within the capital
programme, which it was always intended to fill through the disposal of
the site. The current value of the site is £155,250.

1.6  Redsands is situated in a green gap, and local planners have indicated
that the only possible open market alternatives for the development of
this property is for B1 business use based on the footprint of the
existing buildings, a D2 recreation/leisure type use or possibly a C1
hotel use. Land values are identical for B1 business use and C1 hotel
use but the B1 business use is preferred by local planners and there is
more demand for this use — the hotel use is not considered to be
realistic in view of recent hotel developments in Crewe town centre.

Version 1 April 2009 (SH)



1.7

1.8

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.0

3.1

Page 26

D2 recreation/leisure type use gives a lower land values.
Development for open market residential purposes will not be
permissible. The building of supported tenancy accommodation would
be allowed within the footprint of the existing buildings.

The funding to allow the transfer of the Redsands site from Children’s
Services to Adult Services at the value of £165,000 (current valuation
updated 30/11/09 at £155,250) was agreed by Cabinet on 11" August
2009 as part of the Review of the 1% Quarter Year of Capital for
2009/10.

It is now necessary to formally seek permission from Cabinet to go
through a selection process for the proposed development of social
care housing for Adults with a Learning Disability. The development of
this provision will avoid Cheshire East placing adults coming through
transition from Children’s Services into out of area placements and
return people already living out of area at a lower revenue cost to the
Council.

Decision Requested

Agree to the transfer of the site from the Children’s Services to Adult
Services at the valuation of £155,250.

Agree to procure a development partner for the Redsands site to
provide supported living facilities for adults with a learning disability.

Agree that Counsels opinion may be sought to ensure that the disposal
of land to the chosen Registered Social Care Landlord does not fall
within the definition of a Public Works Contract and so be caught by
Public Contracts Regulations 2006 as referred to in paragraph 9.2 of
this report.

Agree to go out to consultation to look at future need for respite for people
with very complex conditions and review current use of services, in line with
personal budgets and use of alternative provision.

Reasons for Recommendations

There are 54 children moving into Adults Services over the next 2 years. 19 of
these individuals moved to adult services in July this year at an annual cost to
Cheshire East of £1,088,000. The individual package costs of these 19 ranges
from £1000 a week to £5000 a week.

Version 1 April 2009 (SH)



3.2

3.3

3.2

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

Page 27

There are 47 people living in residential or private hospitals out of area, who
could be housed locally, closer to their families and friends. The package costs
of these individuals range from £1000 a week to £3,800 a week.

Returning people from out of area placements will develop capacity in the
health and social care economy by allowing the local market to expand.

It will also provide an opportunity to develop the skills and expertise required
within the local workforce, to deal with people with complex conditions. These
skills have been lost to the residents of Cheshire East as we have placed
people out of area.

Wards Affected

Rope Ward

Local Ward Members

Councillor Brian Silvester
Councillor Margaret Simon
Councillor Ray Westwood

Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

By returning people to their local community, travel time and car pollution will
be decreased for families and professionals, by reducing the requirement to
travel long distances.

The health and wellbeing of people returning to their local community will be
improved as they will be living closer to their relatives. People will have access
to their local health services and professionals and carers will be able to
monitor the service more effectively.

The scheme would also fit within priority 3 and 4 of the Sub Regional Housing
Strategy for Cheshire East, by accommodating and providing support to the
regions most vulnerable residents. The scheme would do this by ‘developing
focus on improved quality of life and raising aspirations, giving local people
more choice in the housing available to them and improving the range and
quality of housing on offer to ensure that people are able to access the kind of
housing that they need/aspire to, whatever their age or situation in life’

Version 1 April 2009 (SH)



7.0

Page 28

Financial Implications for Transition Costs (Authorised by the Borough
Treasurer)

Not Applicable

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

Financial Implications 2009/10 and beyond (Authorised by the Borough
Treasurer)

The financial commitment with the scheme is the transfer value of
£155,250 this can be funded from the Learning Disability Development
Fund capital. This funding has been confirmed by the Learning
Disability Pooled Budget for 2009/10 by the four partners Cheshire
East Council (lead). Cheshire West and Chester Council, Central and
Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust and Western Cheshire Primary
Care Trust.

The tenants will all have critical or substantial assessed needs, so
there will be no ‘net widening'. Staff support will be funded from the
cost of the services users’ current care packages. Savings will be
realised through more efficient staff deployment across the scheme,
aided by assistive technology. Prices have risen dramatically in the
independent sector in the last five years, and the scheme will help to
reduce Cheshire East’'s exposure to adverse market forces.

The exact staffing complement will be based on the assessed needs of
the individual service users. Staff will need to have specialist skills to
provide services for people who challenge existing services and a full
training programme will be required to support this area of work.

As tenants become more independent, individuals will want to choose
their own support though self-directed support and individual budgets.

Annual savings on care costs remain an estimated £143,650 per
annum. This is taking the current revenue cost of 24 clients on
transition or living in out of area placements at £2,873,000 a year and
reducing these costs by 5%. This is felt to be a very prudent
assessment of potential cost reduction which is considered to be
deliverable. However, it is not possible to quantify the exact level of
savings at this point as the service users concerned have not yet been
finalised.

When considering the annual savings it needs to be recognised that
income is being forgone due to the lease being granted on a
peppercorn basis. The lease terms are critical to unlocking the
Registered Social Landlord’s ability to procure capital investment for

Version 1 April 2009 (SH)



Page 29

the scheme from Homes and Communities to enable the project to
proceed.

9.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

9.1  The General Consent under Section 25 of the Local Government Act
1988 for the disposal of land to registered social landlords 2005
provides that a local authority may give financial assistance to a
registered social landlord (RSL), by disposing of land at an undervalue,
subject to the terms of the proposed disposal complying with the
conditions set out in the consent.

9.2 Recent European Court of Justice cases and subsequent Office of
Government and Commerce (OGC) guidance (Public Policy
Information note 11/09 16 October 2009) has created some
uncertainty, where there is more than a simple disposal of land, as is
the case here. The council is proposing to enter into a lease, requiring
land to be developed for a certain use with amongst other things
nomination rights. If the works being carried out by the Developer fall
within the definition of a "Public Works Contract" then the council
must follow the procedures laid down in the Public Contracts
Regulations 2006 if it is not below the relevant financial thresholds,
which in this case would be £3,927,260 (from 1st January 2010). This
would mean advertising at EU level in the Official Journal of the
European Union. Contracts below the above threshold are not caught
by the Regulations.

10.0 Risk Management

10.1 The risks of Cheshire East not providing this service will mean that
individuals will continue to go out of area at high cost to Cheshire East.

10.2 Continuing to move people to out of area placements means that people
are unable to access local community and health services and live away

from their family and friends. Individuals and families also have little
choice and control over where they live and the support they have.

11.0 Background and Options

11.1  In January 2009, the Department of Health published Valuing People
Now, which relates to future national priorities for adults with a learning

Version 1 April 2009 (SH)



Page 30

disability. Increasing the availability of tenancies and home ownership
is one of four key areas within the document. The new provision will
make available 18 tenancies.

11.2 Returning individuals as appropriate from high cost out-of-area
placements is a Valuing People Now objective and also recommended
by the updated Mansell report 2008. Professor Mansell clearly
identifies and makes recommendations on the need for commissioners
to develop local services for people with significant challenging
behaviour. Many service users have lived in their current placement for
a considerable length of time, but others were placed a long way from
home simply because there was no viable local alternative.

11.3 The demographic changes that Cheshire East Council are facing for
the general population have the same implications for people with
learning disabilities, people are living longer and more children are
being born with disabilities. Research in this area has been completed
by Eric Emerson and Chris Hatton in two papers; People with Learning
Disabilities in England and Estimating Future need of Adults with
Profound Multiple Learning Disabilities in England. These papers
estimate a 1.8% annual increase in the population of adults with
complex conditions requiring services from 2009 to 2026. This will
equate for the population of Cheshire East a rise from 95 adults with
complex conditions in 2009 to 147 in 2026.

11.4 The new provision will provide 18 single flats and a 6 bedded
residential service with the potential of a 6 bedded respite unit.
Cheshire East Council will need to rent the land to a Registered Social
Landlord (RSL) who will be responsible for the design, planning and
building of the accommodation. Individuals will have a tenancy
agreement with the RSL who will maintain the buildings. The support
provider will be separate to the Registered Social Landlord.

11.5 This development would provide Cheshire East’s In House Provider
Services, as the Support Provider, with the opportunity to modernise
and redevelop their services in line with providing for people with high
dependency needs. (Cabinet decision of Nov 3™ on Transformation of
Services for Adults, Phase2)

11.6 The Support Provider will provide a service model in the new provision
that will ensure that people with learning disabilities are involved in
important life decisions and receive support to do things that are
consistent with their own wishes and those identified in a Person
Centre Plan. This will require a balanced approach between risk
management and person centred care. All clients will have a health
action plan.

11.7 The Support Provider will be registered with the Care Quality

Commission for residential and domiciliary care. They will demonstrate
that resources are delivered in a cost effective way in delivering

Version 1 April 2009 (SH)



Page 31

individuals care. The service will incorporate assistive technology to
allow individuals to maximize their independence.

11.8 The Support Provider will employ well trained qualified staff who will be
able to demonstrate the knowledge and skills required to support adults
with complex conditions. The model of support must be developed by
good leadership, team working and supervision.

11.9 People returning from out of area will be much closer to their families
and other existing social networks and local health facilities. Their
continuing needs can be more closely monitored by social care and
health professionals, assisting the move to greater independence as
appropriate.

11.10 The scheme could be completed and tenancies allocated by
approximately summer 2011.

12.0 Overview of Year One and Term One Issues

12.1  The scheme will provide the following accommodation;

e 3 blocks of single flats with 6 flats in each block
e 1 x 6 bedded residential service
e 1 x 6 bedded respite unit

Total 24 places & 6 respite places (if required via the consultation & review)

13.0 Access to Information

Report Compiled by Liz Austin, Commissioning Manager, Adult Services
01260 375411

Name: Phil Lloyd

Designation: Head of Services for Adults
Tel No: 01625 374725

Email: phil.lloyd@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Version 1 April 2009 (SH)



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33 Agenda ltem 7

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
REPORT TO: CABINET

Date of Meeting: 19 January 2010

Report of: Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets

Subject/Title: Financial Update — Quarter 3 (Three Quarter Year Review)
Portfolio Holder: Clir Frank Keegan

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 This report advises Cabinet of the three-quarter-year financial position in
2009-10.
1.2 The report particularly focuses upon areas of high financial risk to the

Council and includes updates on Treasury Management, the Capital
Programme, and in-year collection rates for Council Tax and Business

Rates.
2.0 Decision Requested
2.1 Cabinet is requested to note and comment as appropriate on the following:

e the pressures on the Council’'s revenue budget in the third quarter of
2009-10 as detailed in Section 11 and Appendix 1, and the proposed
remedial actions shown in Appendices A to C;

¢ the Treasury Management update detailed in Section 12;

e the Council’s in-year collection rates for Council Tax and Business Rates,
detailed in Section 13;

e progress to date on delivering the 2009-10 capital programme, detailed in
Section 14 and Appendix 3;

¢ Delegated Decisions approved by Directors, as shown in Appendix 2b;

e Delegated Decisions approved by Directors in consultation with the
relevant Portfolio Holder and the Portfolio Holder for Resources for
Supplementary Capital Estimates (SCE) and virement requests over
£100,000 and up to and including £500,000 as shown in Appendix 2a;

2.2 Cabinet is requested to approve the following:

¢ the revised in-year capital budget for 2009-10 as set out in Section 14,
including;

e Supplementary Capital Estimates (SCE)/Virements over £500,000 and up
to and including £1.0m, as shown in Appendix 2a

¢ Reductions in approved budgets, as shown in Appendix 2c.



2.3

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

Page 34

Cabinet is asked to recommend that Council approve the following SCE and
Virement requests over £1.0m, those which require funding from later years
and those funded from reserves, as detailed in Appendix 2a:-

o Housing Grants (ex Macclesfield BC) £1,044,904

Reasons for Recommendations
This is the first budget of Cheshire East Council with a number of significant
challenges, and in accordance with good practice members should receive
a quarterly report on the financial position of the Council. This is the third
report for the 2009-10 financial year.
Wards Affected
Not applicable.
Local Ward Members
Not applicable.
Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

None.

Financial Implications for Transition Costs (Authorised by the Borough
Treasurer)

None.

Financial Implications 2009-10 and beyond (Authorised by the Borough
Treasurer)

As covered in the report.
Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

There are no specific legal implications related to the issues raised in this
report.

Risk Management

Financial risks are assessed on a regular basis and will be reported to
members quarterly. Remedial action will be taken if and when required.

Revenue Budget 2009-10

The first quarter report to Cabinet on 11" August 2009 reported on

emerging pressures to the revenue budget amounting to £12.7m. At the



Page 35

mid year stage this position had reduced to £11.3m. This report provides a
further update on budget pressures and the remedial actions in place.

11.2 Table 1 provides a summary position and reports an updated net budget
pressure totalling £7.9m. Further details of the key pressures affecting
directorates are summarised below and are provided in more detail in
Appendix 1.

Table 1 — Total Service Position
Service Net Budgeted | Underlying | Remedial Net
Budget | Savings Budget Actions Budget
Pressures Pressures
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
A B C D E (C-D)
People 124,825 (5,374) 14,355 (7,558) 6,797
Places 47,809 (7,421) 3,696 (3,177) 519
P&C 39,321 (11,189) 8,595 (8,043) 552
Total 211,955 | (23,984) 26,646 | (18,778) 7,868
Note: Net Budget includes Schools balances carried forward from 2008-09.

11.3 PEOPLE DIRECTORATE
Introduction

11.3.1 The mid year review for the People directorate reported emerging pressures
with a projected impact in 2009/10 of £7.59m. This projected overspend was
influenced by the increase in demand driven services, especially the 20%
increase in looked after children and increases in care costs for Adults.

11.3.2 Since the mid year the directorate has reduced the underlying budget

pressure to £14.4m (£16m was reported as part of mid year review). The
budget pressures have been contained through vacancy management;
review of admissions to care services; continuous review of the budget
position and other actions. The pressure on demand driven services has
continued to increase, especially in relation to Children Social Care (an
overall increase of 25% since April 2009) and Adults Social Care. A
projected gross impact of £14.4m is being reported for the third quarter.
Following remedial actions (and agreed temporary funding) a net budget
pressure of £6.8m overspend is being reported for the People Directorate.



Page 36

Table 2 - Summary Figures - People

Service Net Budgeted | Underlying | Remedial Net
Budget Savings Budget Actions Budget
Pressures Pressures

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Children and 37,161 298 6,825 (2,058) 4,767

Families

Adults 72,537 3,923 6,711 (5,500) 1,211

Health and 15,127 1,153 819 819

Wellbeing

Total 124,825 5,374 14,355 (7,558) 6,797

11.3.3 Key Issues

Pressure on care services, especially the volatility of high value,
demand led services, e.g. looked after children and provision of care
for older people.

High cost of securing Child social care placements which are provided
externally (e.g. out of county; inter authority).

Increase in staffing costs to deal with additional demand, especially
agency staff for Looked after Children.

Ongoing difficulties in achieving existing and increased income targets
due to the economic climate.

Planned efficiency savings are not being achieved by all services and
in some cases will not be achieved during 2009/10.

Inherited budget pressures relating to the Learning Disability Pooled
budget.

11.3.4 Remedial Action

Grant will be fully utilised to reduce the pressure on the base budget.

A 2% target has been set to reduce the care costs related to Adults
Social Care. Analysis is underway to assess if further reductions can
be achieved between now and the year end, with an initial focus on the
highest 100 cases.

Efficient and effective use of the Community Equipment Store.
The Adults service will review the referral mechanism for care related

packages for Adults to ensure that services are being targeted and
delivered to the correct users in a timely and efficient manner.




11.3.5

11.3.6

11.3.7

11.4

11.4.1

Page 37

e Procurement arrangements for Children Social Care services are being
challenged so that reduced care costs are negotiated.

e Other activities across the Health and Wellbeing service are being
reviewed aiming to further reduce the overspend.

o Staff vacancies will continue to be managed.

e Continuous review of the budget position to ensure that remedial
action is being implemented and is taking effect.

Transitional Costs

It is anticipated that there will be redundancy costs within Children and
Families which are not budgeted for of at least £1m relating to the service
restructure. It is anticipated that these costs will be funded from transitional
costs.

Remedial Action
A detailed remedial action plan is shown in Appendix A.
Ongoing Impacts 2010-2011 and future years

There are budget pressures within a number of areas of the department
which are going to continue into 2010-11. Below is a list of ongoing impacts
that need to be considered for future budget planning:

o £3.17m on looked after children. The pressure on children social care
is likely to continue over future years. Whilst plans are being put in
place to review contracts and internal foster care provision there will
continue to be an overspend on this service.

e £1.175m on disability looked after children. The demand for
specialised care for looked after children is also increasing and this
budget will continue to overspend in 2010/11 if the demand remains at
its current levels.

PLACES DIRECTORATE

Following organisational restructures and associated budget transfers
between Directorates and Services, the Places Directorate has an approved
net budget for 2009-10 of £47.8m. Savings of £7.4m were included in the
Places Directorate budget as part of the budget determination for 2009-10.
Whilst progress is being made in realising many of the cost savings and
efficiency items, areas of budget pressure were identified as part of the mid-
year review. This report focuses on the remedial actions put in place to
mitigate those pressures and their progress to date. It also highlights further
budget pressures that have been identified subsequently.



Page 38

Table 3 - Summary Figures — Places

Underlying
budget
pressures/
Net Budgeted o_ther Remedial Net budget
- variances .
budget savings £000s actions pressures
Service £000 £000 £000 £000
Environmental 33,690 (4,915) 2,630 (1,289) 1,341
Safer & Stronger
Communities 556 (877) 253 (483) (230)
Planning & Policy 3,063 (518) 1,163 (427) 736
Regeneration 10,500 (1,111) (350) (978) (1,328)
Total 47,809 (7,421) 3,696 (3,177) 519

11.4.2

11.4.3

11.4.4

11.4.5

Key changes from mid-year review

Income generation continues to be a particular area of concern for the
directorate along with the costs of Waste Disposal services. These together
with other underlying budget pressures are partly offset by significant pay
underspends. Services have identified a series of remedial actions to
mitigate the directorate’s overspend, which are shown at Appendix B.

Environmental Services

Environmental Services are forecasting an overspend of £2.63m before
remedial actions (MYR £2.19m). The position has worsened mainly due to
additional staffing costs in Waste & Recycling of £280k (which includes
£170k for Environmental Wardens as outlined in appendix 1); £160k in
Highways Operations; and £215k in Streetscape offset by a saving of £150k
on the maintenance budget in Waste & Recycling. Remedial actions of
£1.289m have been identified reducing the forecast overspend to £1.341m.

Planning & Policy

At mid-year review the Service forecast an overspend of £1.2m arising
mainly from an underachievement of planning and land charges fees.
Remedial actions of £427k have subsequently identified leaving a net
forecast overspend of £736k. £330k of the remedial savings will be
achieved through accelerating savings, already identified as part of the
MTFS process, and savings of £30k from running costs for Housing
Strategy.

Conclusion
The Directorate continues to face underlying budget pressures arising from

the cost of waste disposal and difficulty in generating income due to external
economic influences. A thorough review has been carried out to identify



Page 39

remedial actions across services which will contribute £3.2m of savings in
2009-10 to give a net forecast outturn (budget pressure) position of £519k
(1.09%) against an approved net budget of £47.8m.

11.4.6 The Directorate will continue to monitor closely key areas, including overtime

11.5

11.5.1

11.5.2

11.5.3

and agency staffing costs, in order to realise any further potential savings.

PERFORMANCE & CAPACITY DIRECTORATE

The mid year review for the Performance & Capacity directorate reported
emerging pressures with a projected underlying impact in 2009/10 of £5.4m.
The three quarter position is now over £3m higher due to the inclusion of the
impact of the voluntary redundancy exercise, totalling £3.079m. This figure,
however, includes Shared Services (ICT, HR & OD and Finance) which are
still subject to review and final agreement on the cost sharing arrangements.

The approved 2009-10 budget included transitional funding of £5.2m to
recognise the fact that the P & C efficiency savings of over £10m could not
all be delivered immediately. The total transitional funding requirement is
£5.0m (including the 2009-10 element of Invest to Save bids). The remedial
action column relates to the total funding available centrally both in terms of
severance / actuarial costs and those relating to the transition fund.

The net budget pressure has worsened by £230k since mid year primarily
due to the change in treatment of the corporate procurement and energy
savings. The impact of this treatment has been partially offset by
improvements in other areas within P & C.

Table 4 - Summary Figures — Performance & Capacity

Service

Net
Budget

£000

Budgeted
Savings

£000

Underlying
Budget
Pressures
£000

Remedial
Actions

£000

Net
Budget
Pressures
£000

Borough
Treasurer & Head
of Assets

22,887

(6,904)

5,188

(5,492)

(304)

Corporate
Procurement
Savings

(561)

(561

561

(253)

308

Corporate Energy
Savings

(500)

(500)

500

(150)

350

HR & OD

2,863

(954)

1,276

(1,276)

0

Borough Solicitor

5,337

(1,083)

345

(290)

55

Policy &
Performance

9,295

(1,187)

725

(582)

143

Total

39,321

(11,189)

8,595

(8,043)

552




Page 40

11.5.4 Key issues

o Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets

The underlying budget pressures have increased by over £2m since the mid
year review. This relates mainly to VR costs in the ICT Shared Service,
Finance (incl.Shared Service) and Revenue and Benefits for which central
funding is sought. Other emerging pressures in Assets and Finance relating
to the ongoing budget are being managed through a combination of
remedial action and transitional funding. Serious concerns remain with
regard to IT forecasts due to the lack of financial information from the
shared service.

e HR&OD

The £335k variance from the mid year position is again due to the inclusion
of VR costs that relate to both the shared and non shared part of the
service. Excluding the VR costs, the improvement in the underlying position
of £54k is primarily because of lower than anticipated costs in the HR
Shared Service.

o Borough Solicitor

No significant change from the mid year position. Small improvement in the
net underlying position of £60k primarily due to increase in the Democratic
Services underspend, stemming from improvements in projected income
and greater clarity on elections expenditure.

o Policy & Performance

There has been an improvement of £215k in the underlying overspend
compared with the mid year position. This results from under spends in
both Audit and Planning and Performance as result of holding staffing
vacancies and a reduction in spend in the CEO and Partnerships service
from delays in recruiting to the Local Area Partnerships structure.

e  Corporate Savings

At the mid year it was assumed that Council wide savings targets of just
over £1m relating to energy savings and procurement savings would be
allocated to departments and delivered in year. A corporate decision was
taken not to allocate these out across the authority. The Assets service will
absorb part of the energy savings and transitional funding will meet part of
the Procurement savings leaving a residual balance of £658k to be
corporately managed.



11.6

11.6.1

11.6.2

12.0

121

Page 41

Central Contingencies
Inflation

The 2009-10 budget contained a central inflation contingency provision of
£4.5m to cover increases in pay costs, pension contributions and prices
during the year.

The provision allowed for pay increases of 2.5%. In March 2009, a residual
pay award to Local Government Officers of 0.3% for 2008-09 was agreed.
This had not been permanently built in to service budgets. The agreed pay
award announced in September for 2009-10 provides for a 1% pay award
(or 1.25% for lower paid staff). Based on communications from the JNC for
Chief Officers it has been assumed that staff on Grade 14 and above will
not receive a pay award in 2009-10. The total cost of these pay awards to
Services in 2009-10 is £1.644m, which has been allocated to services’
budgets.

Services have also been allocated £390,000 in respect of a 0.5% increase
for inflation on non-pay budgets. It is assumed that the provision for the
increase in Pension contributions will be allocated in full.

Based on the above it is estimated that services will be allocated £2.9m
from the budgeted provision of £4.5m, leaving £1.6m to be returned to
balances.

Phasing Adjustment

The budget contained a provision of £52m to reflect potential
underachievement in implementing planned efficiency savings in 2009-10.
As reported above, it is estimated that £5.0m of this provision is required to
alleviate overspending pressures in Performance and Capacity.

Treasury Management

Investment income based upon the current economic climate is estimated to
be in line with the original budget of £0.9m, which was based on estimated
average balances of £140m.

e The rate of interest to be earned on the Council’'s cash balances is
budgeted to be 0.65%

e The average lend position (the 'cash balance’) including fund manager
and legacy balances up to the end of the third quarter was £129.6m.

e The average interest rate received on in house investments up to the
end of the third quarter was 0.9%

o The average interest rate received on the external managed Investec
fund up to the end of the third quarter was 1.6%



Page 42

12.2 The Council’s total average interest rate up to the end of quarter 3 in 2009-
10 was 1.02%. This is favourable when compared to the London Inter-bank
Bid Rate for 7 days 0.40% and the budgeted outturn of 0.65%. The base
rate remained at 0.50% for the quarter.
Comparator Average Rate Q2
Cheshire East 1.02%
LIBID 7 Day Rate 0.40%
LIBID 3 Month Rate 0.81%
Base Rate 0.50%
Year to date 2009/10 Comparison of Average 7 day LI
to Average Interest Rates Received ——- Base Rate
3.0000
2 —e—Av. 7 day LIBID
€ 2000 Rate year to date
14
‘g 15000
£ o] H\u\"\nw —m— CE Average Rate
= year to date
0.0000 T T T T T T T T T T T
Apr May Jun Ju Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Av. 3 Month LIBID
Months Rate year to date
12.3 The Council’'s authorised counterparty list as advised by Arlingclose
Treasury Advisors is as follows —
Abbey National Plc Bank of Scotland Plc
Barclays Bank Plc Clydesdale Bank (includes Yorkshire Bank)
HSBC Bank Plc Lloyds Bank Plc
Nationwide Building Society Royal Bank of Scotland Plc
13.0 Collection Rates
13.1 The Council Tax collection rate for the third quarter is 87.0%, which is 0.6%
lower than the comparable figure last year.
13.2 The National Non-Domestic Rates collection rate for the third quarter is

87.3%. However, £649,000 of Business Rate payments have been deferred
following the introduction of a new national scheme. By excluding these
deferred payments the collection figure for Cheshire East stands at 87.7%,
which is 0.2% higher than last year.




Page 43

14.0 Capital Programme

14.1 At the three quarter review stage, Cheshire East are forecasting expenditure
of £105.168m in 2009-10, £66.794m in 2010-11 and £9.611m in later years.
Details are shown below in Table 5.

Table 5 — Three Quarter Review Capital Expenditure Forecasts

Forecast Expenditure

Department 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13
£000 £000 £000 £000
People
New Starts 8,132 20,158 3,236 50
Committed schemes 27,272 11,142 1,270 350
35,404 31,300 4,506 400
Places
New Starts 15,913 1,363 0 0
Committed schemes 36,960 22,506 3,277 0
52,873 23,869 3,277 0
Performance & Capacity
New Starts 13,549 10,450 540 0
Committed schemes 3,343 1,193 888 0
16,892 11,643 1,428 0
Total New Starts 37,593 31,971 3,776 50
Total Committed schemes 67,575 34,841 5,435 350
Total Capital Expenditure 105,168 66,812 9,211 400

14.2  The 2009-10 programme consists of on-going legacy schemes (£67.575m)
and new starts (£37.593m).

14.3 The programme is funded from both direct (grants, external, linked capital
receipts), and indirect (borrowing approvals, revenue contributions, capital
reserve, non-applied receipts) income. Details are shown below in Table 6.

Table 6 — Funding Sources

Forecast Expenditure
Funding Source 2009-10 | 2010-11 2011-12 | 2012-13
£000 £000 £000 £000

Grants 53,839 38,946 4,810 50
External Contributions 5,664 650 0 0
Linked/Earmarked Capital Receipts 4,397 14,279 335 350
Supported Borrowing 12,122 4,462 1,924 0
Non-supported Borrowing 12,904 5,200 1,862 0
Revenue Contributions 3,564 340 0 0
Capital Reserve 8,503 7,111 280 0
Total 100,994 70,987 9,211 400




14.4

14.5

14.6

14.6.1

14.6.2

14.6.3

14.6.4

Page 44

NB Variance between expenditure and funding in 2009-10 and 2010-11 is
due to a number of linked receipts not now due in until 2010-11

Departments have updated forecasts as requested at the three quarter year
stage, resulting in a decrease of £7.125m for 2009-10, an increase of
£13.226m in 2010-11, and a decrease of £2.835m in later years from the
position reported at mid year stage. The majority of the reduction in forecast
expenditure in 2009-10 is due to a number of schemes progressing more
slowly than originally forecast. Further details are provided in Section 14.6.
This slippage, combined with the approval of a number of new schemes is
the reason why the forecast for 2010-11 has increased.

Details on a scheme by scheme basis are contained in Appendix 3.

Key Issues and Variances

Details of major variances (over £0.250m) between the in-year budget and
three quarter year forecasts for 2009-10 along with any other issues for
Departments, and details of new schemes requiring approval are shown
below. Members should note that any new schemes over £0.250m have
already been approved by the Capital Appraisal & Monitoring Group.

People

Transforming Learning Communities schemes (TLC)

Members were advised at the first quarter review of a cash flow problem
of around £4.1m. This was due to a reduction in the value of the receipts
due and a delay to the date the receipts were expected.  Officers have
explored different solutions and it is proposed to fund the shortfall through
the capital reserve, and repay the reserve once the receipts are received.

National Dementia Strategy — Hollins View
This scheme has now been removed from the programme.

Vernons PS Amalgamation

In year budget £3.079m, Forecast £3.379m, variance £0.300m

This scheme is progressing quicker than expected, therefore the 2010-11
projection has reduced. The TLC schemes currently have issues with the
capital receipts as these cannot be accessed until 2010-11 where the
scheme will then become balanced.

Devolved Formula Capital (DFC) — All allocations

In year budget £6.774m, Forecast £4.661m, variance -£2.113m

DFC is 100% devolved to schools for them to spend on capital. It is
notoriously difficult to forecast as schools can spend the allocation in full in
the year it is allocated, or ‘save’ it towards a major capital scheme at the
school site. Schools have 3 years and 5 months to spend each years’
allocation. Forecasts have been reduced in the current year to reflect a
reduction in the amount of DFC expenditure being incurred by schools.




14.6.5

14.6.6

14.6.7

14.6.8

14.6.9

14.6.10

14.6.11

Page 45

Integrated Children’s Systems (ICS) 08-09

In year budget £0.567m, Forecast £0.154m, variance -£0.413m

The next significant upgrade and development work required for ICS has
been delayed by the Paris software slippage. This was originally due to be
delivered in 2009-10 but will now be delayed until 2010-11.

14-19 Diploma

In year budget £0.700m, Forecast £0.300m, variance -£0.400m

Cheshire East Council are currently considering their priorities for this
funding source and are looking to ensure that whatever is planned is
complementary to any plans being considered by Cheshire West & Chester
regarding 14-19 special educational needs provision across both
Authorities.

Brine Leas 6" Form

In year budget £2.922m, Forecast £3.650m, variance £0.728m

This scheme is progressing quicker than expected and the three quarter
year forecast represents a more realistic projection. Income is received on
a quarterly basis from the Learning Skills Council, and therefore the
variance will be fully funded from grant. A virement of £192,202 from the
Access Block scheme has been requested to fund the overspend in 2009-
10 until further funding is received in 2010-11.

Sandbach United

In year budget £2.200m, Forecast £0m, variance -£2.200m

This scheme was approved by Council in October. Initial projections
indicated that the scheme would progress quickly in 2009-10. However,
revised projections indicate that the total budget will be spent in the
following financial year.

Schools Modernisation Programme

In year budget £0.574m, Forecast £0m, variance -£0.574m

Members are asked to approve a new scheme at Kings Grove Mobile
Replacement, which will be part funded from this scheme (£574,000). This
scheme was originally put forward at mid year but further information was
requested at that time.

Extra Care Housing

In year budget £1.850m, Forecast £0.450m, variance -£1,400

The underspend is due to the acquisition of new premises which has been
delayed until the following financial year.

Cledford TLC Scheme

In year budget £1.219m, Forecast £0.830m, variance -£0.389m

Planning permission was expected for this scheme in October 2009,
however the decision was deferred and permission granted in November
2009. The scheme is due to start on site in January 2010.




14.6.12

14.6.13

14.6.14

14.6.15

14.6.16

14.6.17

14.6.18

Page 46

Macclesfield Canal Footbridge

Members are asked to note a Supplementary Capital Estimate of £0.131m
for this new scheme within appendix 2a. The scheme, to build a new
footbridge over the Bollington Canal in partnership with Bollington Civic
Society, WREN, British Waterways and the private sector, is fully funded
from external contributions.

Lower Heath Play Space Renewal

Members are asked to note a Supplementary Capital Estimate of £0.120m
for this scheme within appendix 2a. The scheme, for a supplementary
phased work programme following on from completion of the current play
builder programme, will be fully funded from external S106 contributions.

Places

Highway Maintenance

In year budget £0.968m, Forecast £0m, Variance -£0.968m

This project is currently on hold. The funding relied upon savings within the
revenue budgets to fund Prudential Borrowing costs, but due to pressures
within revenue, it is unlikely savings can be found.

Vehicle Replacement Programme

In year budget £0.500m, Forecast £0m, Variance -£0.500m

This project is currently on hold. The funding relied upon savings within the
revenue budgets to fund Prudential Borrowing costs, but due to pressures
within revenue, it is unlikely savings can be found.

Alderley Edge ByPass — Scheme Implementation

In year budget £24.930m, Forecast £26.900m, variance £1.970m

The increase in forecast expenditure in 2009-10 has arisen from
significantly better than programmed construction progress during the year.
The overall funding position is not compromised as the projects projected
outturn remains within its total approval.

Non-Prinicipal Road Maintenance — Minor Works

In year budget £2.289m, Forecast £2.785m, variance £0.496m

As part of the identified remedial actions, it is proposed that up to £740,000
of highways repairs/structural maintenance is capitalised, relieving the
revenue account of costs in respect of improvement works classifiable as
capital expenditure.

Business Development Land

In year budget £0.500m, Forecast £0m, variance -£0.500m

The inherited Programme has been reviewed to rationalise projects and free
up capacity and resources. It is proposed that this scheme be removed to
enable targeting of resources to new investment priorities.




Page 47

14.6.19 Queens Park Restoration

In year budget £4.239m, Forecast £1.350m, variance -£2.889m

The original slippage information provided by the legacy district authority
indicated this scheme would be completed in 2009-10: this was incorrect as
the project was always due to complete in 2010-11. The in year variance is
therefore misleading. The project has slipped slightly based on original
estimates due to the original contractor going into receivership. There is a
concerted effort by the Project Team and Project Board to resolve issues
resulting from this to ensure final completion is delayed as little as possible.

14.6.20 Crewe Town Squares — Lyceum Square

14.6.21

In year budget £1.360m, Forecast £1.100m, variance -£0.260m

Project delivery is now progressing well, following confirmation of the
funding from the North West Development Agency. It will therefore be
possible to deliver £1.1m of the scheme in 2009-10 with the scheme being
completed in 2010-11.

Project Development — Middlewich Eastern ByPass

In year budget £0.400m, Forecast £0.050m, variance -£0.350m

This is a partnership project with funding driven by the private sector in
association with development accessed from the scheme. A significant part
of the financial package for the project has been identified as coming from
the North West Development Agency and under their grant funding rules the
scheme has to be procured through the Highway Authority. Cheshire East
monies were identified in the current financial year to fund both the scheme
procurement process and a block of finance determined as the initial
element of the LA contribution. As yet the private sector element of the
monies has not been secured, the scheme cannot be progressed, and
consequently the Authority’s fund are not currently required. The allocation
for 2009-10 has been written down to a level that may be required for some
supplementary work that could be needed to broaden the scope of funding
for the scheme.

14.6.22 Housing Grants (ex Macclesfield BC) — S106

Council are asked to approve a Supplementary Capital Estimate of £1.045m
for this scheme within appendix 2a. The scheme, a rural housing enabler
partnership with Staffordshire Moorland Housing, will be fully funded from
external S106 contributions

14.6.23 Requests for Supplementary Capital Estimates (SCEs) & Virements

As indicated in the paragraph above in respect of the Business
Development Land scheme, the Places Directorate Management Team has
reviewed its existing, inherited Capital Programme, with a view to
rationalising its projects, freeing up capacity to deliver and targeting
resources to new investment priorities. A number of schemes/ remaining
budgets are proposed to be removed from the Programme, as listed below:



14.6.24

14.6.25

Page 48

Scheme Service £000
Outdoor Market Covered Stand Env Services 200
New Cemetery Infrastructure - Weston | Env Services 144
Closed Landfill Sites Env Services 2
Housing Energy Efficiency Grants Planning & Policy 3
Business Development Land Acquisition | Regeneration 500
Claims Regeneration 27
Nantwich Old Mill Wall Regeneration 23
Nantwich Market Town Initiative Regeneration 15
Art in a Roundabout way Regeneration 20

934

As set out in the Matters for Decision Appendix 2a, it is recommended that
the resources released are used to finance the following schemes and that
Supplementary Capital Estimates are approved:

e Capitalisation of highways repairs/ structural maintenance - £740,000
(relieving the Revenue Account of costs in respect of improvement works
classifiable as capital expenditure)

e Tatton Park Conservatory Restoration - £160,000 contribution

Regarding the Conservatory restoration, Tatton management have liaised
with colleagues in Assets and in conjunction with architects a business
case is being completed. The total cost of works is estimated to be in the
order of £300,000; the balance of £140,000 may be found from Assets’
existing capital planned maintenance budget, following a review of
spending commitments in the year. When the business case has been
prepared and budget costs firmed up, the whole scheme and its financing
will be brought together and shown as a single project in the Programme.

Performance & Capacity

Currently, there is no information on actual expenditure from Cheshire
West & Chester on areas that are linked to the Shared Services
arrangements. This impacts on a number of ICT schemes.

Customer Relationship Management (CRM)

In-year budget £1.705m, Forecast £1.150m, variance -£0.555m

The slippage in the CRM programme is due to an extended requirements
gathering exercise and assessment of existing council solutions. As a result
of this, the procurement decision is not likely until December. In addition,
the transition phase for the website has lasted longer than anticipated,
leading to delays in web development in the transformation phase, pushing
costs into 2010-11.




14.6.26

14.6.27

14.6.28

14.6.29

14.6.30

14.6.31

14.6.32

Page 49

The Farms Estate

In-year budget £1.410m, Forecast £0.160m, variance -£1.250m

Capital spending/investment has been limited reflecting the delayed
disposals programme, a very limited response from tenants in relation to
Nitrate Vulnerable Zone (NVZ) work, which relates to the storage of slum
and manure, and limited movement by tenants partly in anticipation of
management policy objectives resulting from the ongoing review. It is
however anticipated that activity on disposals will increase in the first
quarter of 2010 and NVZ'’s in the second quarter.

Enterprise Content Management proposal

In year budget £0.500m, Forecast £0.200m, variance -£0.300m

The project has slipped due to services not being clear about their
structures and how they want to manage their information.

Flexible & Mobile Working

In year budget £0.585m, Forecast £0.292, variance -£0.293

The programme has slipped due to a number of factors. Firstly, there are
conflicting resource requirements and priorities within Shared Services.
Secondly, the alignment of quarter 1 and quarter 2 commissioned projects
with the strategic direction of ICT strategy, and thirdly due to delays in
independent projects.

Data Centre Macclesfield

In year budget £0.495, Forecast £0.170m, variance -£0.325m

Work is currently underway to strip out the data centre during the fourth
quarter of 2009-10. Approximately half of the in year variance £160k will be
committed prior to the year end on equipment to kit out the data centre once
it has been made ready. The remaining £165k will be committed during the
first half of 2010-11 on staffing costs/additional equipment required to make
the centre functional

Transforming Cheshire — Improving Oracle (Shared Services)

In year budget £1.038m, Forecast £0.400m, variance -£0.638m

A review is taking place currently to agree the best use for the available
funding with Accounts Receivable developments considered a fundamental
aspect of the agreed programme.

Single Revenue & Benefits System

In year budget £0.444m, Forecast £0.150m, variance -£0.294m

The variance relates to a delay in the implementation date following the
need to re-tender. Payments are profiled to reflect the instalment payments
at various stages of completion.

Office Accommodation Strategy

In year budget £2.350m, Forecast £2.969m, variance £0.619m

The office accommodation strategy has been accelerated during 2009/10
with Westfields being remodelled and Delamere House incurring higher than
planned expenditure due to the refurbishment of three floors and the
customer contact centre.




15.0

15.1

15.2

15.3

16.0

Page 50

Reserves Position

Cheshire East Council’s opening balance for revenue reserves has been
updated following audit of the predecessor authority accounts. There is still
some scope for amendments, following final agreement on disaggregation
of the County Council balance sheet, so figures are still provisional at this
stage.

At the mid year review the estimated level of balances, taking into account
improved opening balances, and budgeted intention to repay costs incurred
from Local Government Reorganisation, appeared sufficient to protect the
council against the identified risks. The position at three quarter year is
under review, although it is anticipated that projected balances will continue
to cover such risks.

The 2009/2010 Budget included the Reserves Strategy. This strategy was
substantially reviewed in August 2009, and a further update was reported to
members at the mid year review stage in November. A further full review of
the Reserves Strategy, including earmarked reserves, will be included in the
Budget Report to Members in February.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting the report writer:

Name: Lisa Quinn
Designation: Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets
Tel No: 01270 686628

Email: lisa.quinn@cheshireeast.gov.uk



Page 51

Appendix 1
REVENUE BUDGET - KEY SERVICE ISSUES

PEOPLE DIRECTORATE

Children and Families

Non Dedicated Schools Grant (£4.767m overspend)

The demand for Children Social Care services has increased by 25% since April
2009. Since MYR the projected overspend has increased by a further £0.57m to
£3.17m (this includes a target saving of £0.33m and remedial action of £0.8m). The
projected overspend has increased due to additional placements since the MYR
(approximately 14); in house care facilities are at full capacity meaning that children
are being placed in high cost external placements. A contingency for unknown
placements during November 2009 to March 2010 of £384k has also been identified.

It is envisaged that this overspend will continue in future years due to the increase of
the number of referrals being made to the department and an increase in the
number of Looked after Children (LAC).

In association with the above there has been an increase in the demand for
specialised placements for looked after children with disabilities with particular
overspends related to out of County and residential placements. The projected
overspend for this area is £1.17m (including remedial action of £0.2m). The cost of
care in these cases is extremely high as specialised care is required.

Home to school transport contracts are reporting an overspend of £1.14m this
overspend is due to inflationary price increases not budgeted for and an increase in
contracts.

The School Catering Service reported at the mid year review a projected outturn
figure of £1.1m with remedial action required of (£1m). This position is now being
reported as a £17k overspend. The projected figure has been recast following a
review to ensure that all income streams had been identified and were being
reported.

Whilst there is still a pressure in relation to staffing budgets for Head of Service of
£0.35m overspend this has reduced by £0.15m since MYR. This projection assumes
that the service completed the restructure in February 2010.

A new service structure will be implemented in 2010/11 and whilst this will transform
the way that the service is delivered this will not create savings in the short term that
can fund the gap linked to demand driven services.

The maximisation and utilisation of grant is helping to mitigate the overspending
reducing the overspend to the reported total of £4.767m. Continued analysis is
underway aiming to reduce the overspend.



Page 52

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) (balanced)

There is a projected under spend of £0.2m relating to Sure Start relating to three
year old funding and four year old funding.

An overspend of £0.56m is being reported for the Special Education Needs (SEN)
area but this overspend should be offset by underspends elsewhere.

The risk that the budget associated to inter authority placements for disability will be
overspent remains but insufficient information from other local authorities is available
at this time.

The projected spend for DSG is balanced but there is still a risk that the budget
related to inter authority may be overspent at year end (insufficient information is
currently available to quantify this overspend).

Adults (£1.2m overspend)

Phase 1 of the transformation programme within Adults services is continuing to
progress forwards. Resource Managers have now been appointed within the
provider service which supports the restructure in this service that takes place in
December 2009.

The Adults service are reporting a gross overspend of £6.7m at three quarter review
which reduces to an overspend of £1.2m after the application of temporary funding
(£4.6m) and agreed remedial action (£0.9m). The service is working towards
recovering the residual £1.2m as far as possible by year end.

Care costs continue to account for the majority of the overspend position before
temporary funding is applied. The cost of long term residential places for Older
People is anticipated to have a net impact of £1.4m. Due to the complexity of
demand for these placements it is challenging to control growth. The long term
vision of re-ablement for individuals is anticipated to reduce these costs over the
longer term.

The combination of inherited budgetary pressures and re-ablement taking longer
than anticipated to deliver is causing further pressure within Community Care
including Direct Payments of £2.4m. The service has set targets to deliver 2%
savings for care for the remaining months which is expected to deliver £0.5m of
savings.

The Learning Disability Pooled Budget (a partnership with CWAC, Western and
Eastern Cheshire PCT’s) has a target saving of £4m to remain within existing
resources. Inherited budgetary pressures including young people in transition;
complex and out of county placements and connected transport costs are
anticipated to generate an overspend of £1.7m. From 1 April 2010 this partnership
arrangement will be set on Cheshire East Council boundaries.



Page 53

The savings targets associated to Internal Provision are still not achievable during
2009/10 (£1.5m savings through restructure and closure of Santune House and
£0.7m in the Learning Disability service). The reported overspend has increased to
£2m due to additional costs being identified that had not previously been included in
the forecast (lease costs; energy costs and real time monitoring costs). These costs
will be reduced by a part year effect of the staffing restructure of £0.2m.

Further pressures are being experienced in the Community Equipment service,
which is a partnership with Cheshire West Council and the 2 PCT’s. Remedial action
in the form of reducing the levels of equipment supplied should reduce the projected
overspend down from £0.4m to £0.2m. Finally, transformation monies being held
centrally within the service result in an underspend of £0.8m used to offset
overspendings elsewhere (e.g. double running costs in Individual Commissioning).

The overspend within adults before temporary funding is applied is £5.8m. However
in recognition of the extent of transformation that the service is undergoing,
members allocated temporary monies of £4.6m to alleviate one off costs such as
double running costs. This results in an overspend after temporary measures have
been applied of £1.2m.

Health and Wellbeing (£0.8m overspend)

There has been a significant improvement in the financial projections of the service
since the mid year point. At mid year an overspend of £1.3m was anticipated and
this overspend has now been revised to £0.8m.

This has been achieved by income remaining constant and in the case of Leisure
services actual income levels have risen by 2% year on year. Also improved
financial information produced a more accurate picture of service performance and
this has coupled with very tight expenditure controls.

Libraries and Cultural Services anticipate an overspend of £469k, the largest
contributing factor being the inability to deliver the £180k Supplies and Services
savings in respect of the Lyceum theatre and Civic Halls as the budgets concerned
directly contribute towards income levels e.g. purchase of bar supplies.

Leisure and Greenspace Services are showing a projected overspend of £350k,
which includes energy costs exceeding budgets by £100k and a shortfall in income
of £218k against budgeted levels. The current Business Planning proposals contain
growth items to correct these budget deficiencies whilst also addressing the overall
financial savings targets.



Page 54

PLACES DIRECTORATE

Key issues

The overall forecast for Places directorate after remedial actions shows an
overspend of £519k primarily due to an overspend on waste disposal of £2.05m and
shortfalls in income from planning fees of £1.5m and car parking of £739k, offset by
savings from pay. A full list of the remedial actions identified by services is shown at
Appendix B.

Budget | Forecast outturn | Variance
Service £000’s £000’s £000’s
Environmental Services 33,690 35,031 1,341
Safer & Stronger 556 326 (230)
Planning & Policy 3,063 3,799 736
Regeneration (excl. Tatton Park) | 10,500 9,172 (1,328)
Total 47,809 48,328 519
Table 1: Places directorate forecast outturn 2009-10
Key variances are examined in more detail below.
Pay
Forecast
Budget | outturn | Variance
Service £000’s | £000’s £000’s
Environmental Services 16,044 16,794 750
Safer & Stronger 5,281 4,577 (704)
Planning & Policy 5,394 5,144 (250)
Regeneration (excl. Tatton Park) 3,724 2,969 (755)
Total 30,443 29,484 (959)

Table 2: Places directorate pay forecast outturn 2009-10

Whilst Services are forecasting significant underspends, it should be noted that
structures remain to be fully populated and that a combination of factors such as
vacancies and salary protections will also have an impact on the outturn position.
Services will be able to quantify this once appointments have been finalised.

Savings on pay are forecast to be offset by an overspend on waste disposal and a
shortfall in planning fees & land charges income: these and other variances are
examined in detail below.



Page 55

Waste Management

At TQR the Waste Management Service is forecasting a £2.05m overspend: of this
£1.8m is from the Landfill and Household Waste Recycling Centres contracts based
on the tonnage figures to October (MYR £1.7m overspend).

Savings of £2.8m were incorporated into the base budget for 2009-10 based on
residual waste tonnages in the East in 2008-09. The Service has been expected to
absorb the impact of the increase in landfill tax of £8 per tonne and other contractual
cost pressures through the reduction in the volume of tonnes processed. However,
the reduction in tonnes may trigger a compensation payment to the contractor as the
threshold for the guaranteed minimum tonnage figure may not be met: the latest
estimate for this is £1.2m.

Tonnage figures for October 2009 are analysed below.

A B C CB C:A
Changes
2009-10 %
2008-09 2009-10 TQR Change % Forecast :
Actual Budget Forecast Forecast : 08/09
Contract Tonnes Tonnes Tonnes Budget Actuals
Landfill 87,656 79,649 77,914 -2.2% -11.1%
Household- 15,007 13,695 13,660 -0.3% -9.0%
Residual
Household- 25,396 26,197 26,498 1.1% 4.3%
Recyclate
Composting 8,724 9,059 8,902 -1.7% 2.0%
Total 136,783 128,600 126,974 -1.3% -7.2%

Table 3: Places directorate waste tonnages as at October 2009

Overall the Waste Collection and Recycling function is forecasting an overspend of
£331k (MYR £315k overspend) against a £10.1m net budget. As reported at mid-
year, savings from the optimisation of collection routes will not now be realised in
2009-10 leading to a gross overspend of £200k. The review will commence later in
the financial year with savings being fully delivered in 2010-11. This overspend will
be partially offset in 2009-10 by anticipated savings of £80k arising from the review
of vehicles in the waste collection fleet.

Safer & Stronger Communities

The forecast outturn before remedial actions shows a net overspend of £253k
compared to £420k reported at the mid-year review. The forecast overspend has
reduced by £117k, arising principally from the transfer of costs of £170k in respect of
Environmental Wardens to Environmental Services. Remedial actions of £483k
have been identified to give a forecast outturn of £230k underspent.



Page 56

Planning & Policy income

The Service continues to see a significant reduction in both planning fees and land
charges income, which have been affected by the downturn in economic activity.
There has been no improvement from the MYR forecast of £1.435m overspend
position although the Service continues to monitor the position closely.

Regeneration

At TQR Regeneration are forecasting an underspend of £350k (MYR £483k
underspend). Further savings of £978k have been identified through remedial
actions in recognition of the overall overspend position within the directorate, to give
a net forecast underspend for the Service of £1.328m.

PERFORMANCE & CAPACITY

Borough Treasurer & Head of Assets

Service Net Budgeted | Underlying | Remedial Net
Budget | Savings Budget Actions Budget
Pressures Pressures
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Head of Borough 339 (212) (109) 0 (109)

Treasurer &

Assets

Building 3,416 (225) (300) 0 (300)

Maintenance

The Farms Estate (74) 0 0 0 0

Property Services 5,310 (91) 429 0 429

Facilities 742 (235) (142) (142)

Management

ICT 5,787 (3,670) 3,779 (3,779) 0

Revenue & 873 (616) 825 (611) 214

Benefits

Finance 3,086 (1,975) 602 (484) 118

Insurance 2,511 0 (504) 0 (504)

Shared Services 610 158 521 (521) 0

Procurement — (70) 0 0 0 0

CBS supplies

Procurement — 81 (38) (10) 0 (10)

International unit

Procurement 276 97 (97) 0

Other

Corporate (561) (561) 561 (253) 308

Procurement

Savings

Corporate Energy (500) (500) 500 (150) 350

Savings

Total 21,826 (7,965) 6,249 (5,895) 354




Page 57

Head of Borough Treasurer & Assets - £109k underspend

The underspend has reduced by £12k since mid year due to the Shared Services
manager post being funded from this area. The £250k telephony saving currently
allocated to the Head of Borough Treasurer & Assets is assumed to be vired to ICT.
Governance costs relating to the set up of the Shared Services of £76k have been
absorbed within this figure.

Building maintenance- £300k underspend

This is a £300k improvement on mid year due to delays in completing work and
prioritisation of projects taking longer than anticipated. £216k share of CWAC costs
relating to the Property Transfer agreement are also assumed to be absorbed within
this figure. However this is only indicative as it will only be at outturn that actuals will
be known and communicated. Work relating to the centralisation of budgets is still
ongoing with £0.2m of Places budgets already vired along with actual expenditure.
Discussions are still to take place with Health & Wellbeing on an additional £1m that
is held in their budget. The service has yet to produce an SLA to assist with the
centralisation process in helping all parties to understand what will be delivered.
Work also needs to take place to ensure that all further expenditure is planned and
agreed for the remainder of the financial year.

The Farms Estate (Shared Service) — nil variance

The Farms Estate will achieve budget and may exceed the income target based
upon actual and planned income. Also expenditure is lower than anticipated against
current budget profiling, but given the seasonal pattern of response work, it is
recommended that overall the planned outturn be reported as net nil.

Property Services - £429k overspend

The overspend in this area has worsened by £69k since mid year primarily due to an
analysis of income targets which has revealed that there is approximately £0.15m of
unachievable income mainly relating to Westfields £70k and Crewe Industrial
Estates £75k. The service is currently considering alternative ways of generating
income to meet the original budget targets.

CWAC recharges relating to West properties have been assumed to be as per
budget for the purposes of this review. However it is difficult to predict what charges
will eventually be agreed by Cheshire East and the forecast could worsen by £0.2m -
£0.4m as a result.

Emperor Court does not yet have permanent funding in place as we are waiting for
County Hall budgets to be made available in 2010/11. The impact this year is £277k
adverse.

Facilities management - £142k underspend

This underspend has reduced slightly by £8k from mid year.



Page 58

Cleaning & Caretaking is expected to generate a £100k overspend due to a £176k
policy option relating to staff savings being applied to this area. A review of all
charges during the remainder of 2009/10 will aim to ensure that costs are recovered
where possible during the financial year.

Office services is predicted to make a significant underspend of £242k due to the
policy option decision above as well as greatly reduced staffing levels. Staffing levels
will be increased once the structure has been agreed.

ICT - £3.779m overspend

The projected outturn position has changed due to the impact of the VR exercise.
£1.44m of costs relating to the shared services part of ICT has been included but
this is still being reviewed as part of the cost sharing agreement work that is ongoing
between Cheshire West and Cheshire East. However the projection, excluding VR,
must also carry a major health warning as the Authority has still not received any
reliable financial information from West hosted IT Shared Service and is therefore
primarily based on estimates

The projected overspend stems from difficulties in delivering policy option savings in
2009-2010. Savings will be achieved from the rationalisation of Telephony systems
but will be significantly less than £250k identified. It is also clear that the savings of
£500k on user driven systems will not be achieved. Harmonisation savings of £1m
are also not achievable this year and will depend critically on the ability of the ICT
Shared Service to decommission all significant Legacy Systems during the current
year. Overall, through the use of transitional funds a balanced budget should be
achieved.

Revenues & Benefits - £825k overspend overall
e Revenues - £378k overspend

The £378k variance from mid year is solely attributable to severance & actuarial
costs associated with the VR exercise. This will be funded centrally.

The staffing underspend that exists currently may be offset by potential delays in
collection of court costs income. An income target associated with 2" home taxation
of £60k will only be partially met. ICT costs associated with software are still not
known due to details not being made available from CWAC. It is assumed that the
non staffing budget will be able to absorb all related expenditure.

e Benefits - £447k overspend

£233k of this variance from mid year is solely attributable to severance & actuarial
costs associated with the VR exercise. This will be funded centrally.

The remaining £214k variance relates to recent invoices from the DWP to recover
the overpayment of overpaid Housing and Council Tax Benefit subsidy from
previous years. Proposals to deal with this issue are currently being looked at.



Page 59

Finance - £602k overspend
The variance of £484k from the mid year position is explained by three factors:

£139k relates to severance and actuarial costs associated with the VR exercise.
This will be funded centrally.

£130k relates to a recharge from Cheshire West for essential work relating to the
closure of the 2008-2009 County Council accounts. A further £215k relates to
staffing retained beyond March 2009 to deal with the significant volume of ongoing
transitional work. Both these factors were anticipated and provided for in transitional
funding and a bid of £345k against this provision is proposed. The remaining
overspend is due to the External Audit fee not reducing to the extent anticipated in
the LGR business case.

Insurances - £504k underspend

It is still anticipated that a favourable position will be achieved due to the successful
re-tendering exercise. An improvement against the mid year position is as a result of
ongoing work to understand the impact of committed premium payments in 2009/10.
In addition to this, there may be potential to deliver an increased underspend
position as a result of other savings made against budget by year end.

Finance - Shared Services - £521k overspend

An unfavourable variance of £21k since mid year is due to the impact of the VR
exercise. Excluding the £71k relating to these costs reveals a slight improvement in
the outturn position due to reduced staffing levels.

The remaining overspend has been caused by Finance Shared Services not being
able to deliver the full extent of savings in the short term anticipated in the LGR
business case.

Procurement - Shared Services £10k underspend

The International Unit is expected to deliver a £10k underspend due to staff
vacancies and CBS supplies is expected to achieve a balanced budget.

Procurement — Non Shared Services £97k overspend

This overspend excludes the corporate procurement savings target detailed below
and relates primarily to the recruitment of staff in the fourth quarter of 2009/10 and
the funding of the Procurement manager post. This has been addressed in the
budget planning process for 2010/11.



Page 60

Cross Cutting Savings - £1.061m overspend

Corporate Energy Savings -£500k overspend

A corporate decision was taken not to try and allocate savings of £500k in year.
Assets are managing £150k of these savings through the application of transitional
funds, leaving a residual balance of £350k to be met across the authority.

Corporate Procurement Savings - £561k overspend

A corporate decision was taken not to allocate Council procurement savings of
£561k in year. Approval has already been given for these to be partially offset

against £253k of transitional funding, leaving a residual balance £308k to be
managed.

Human Resources & Organisational Development

Service Net Budgeted | Underlying | Remedial Net
Budget | Savings Budget Actions Budget
Pressures Pressures

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Head of HR & OD 121 (21) 30 (30) 0

HR Strategy & 96 (70) 30 (30) 0

Policy — OHU

Shared Service

HR Strategy & 716 (179) 91 (91) 0

Policy - Other

HR Organisational 555 (194) 233 (233) 0

Development

HR Delivery — 676 (316) 50 (50) 0

Shared Services

HR Delivery — 699 (174) 842 (842) 0

Other

Total 2,863 (954) 1,276 (1,276) 0

Head of HR & OD - £30k overspend

The overspend is at a similar level to mid year. A non-achievable inherited income
target has contributed to the £30k overspend at outturn, offset by transitional
funding.

HR Strategy & Policy - £91k overspend

No significant changes since mid year but funding is now in place to meet the
majority of the costs associated with the Unison post following a technical budget
adjustment. However additional charges have been incurred for recruitment and
advertising for the Head of Service post. Transitional funds relate to pay modeller /
equal pay reviewer £53k and job evaluation resource £38k.



Page 61

HR Organisational Development - £233k overspend

Improvement against mid year of £36k due to recognition of Cheshire & Warrington
Improvement and Efficiency Partnership funding. £225k transformational costs
relating to MORI employee survey and SUMO will be funded from transitional costs.
In addition £8k of excess staff costs will be met centrally.

HR Delivery £842k overspend

The adverse variance against mid year, of £573k, relates to the redundancy and
actuarial costs associated with staff from the Employee Service Centre. The VR
exercise will be implemented shortly following consultation with the unions. £104k
transformational costs relating to an HR Business Partner and post associated with
Policy Development (Schools Policy Adviser) as well as £135k excess staffing costs
will be funded centrally. Severance costs of £212k will be met from the severance
provision due to the principle of funding those services that overspend.

Shared Services — OHU and Back Office - £80k overspend

Improvement on HR Shared Service of £120k against mid year position due to
staffing reductions with OHU position unchanged.

Borough Solicitor

Service Net Budgeted | Underlying | Remedial Net
Budget | Savings Budget Actions Budget
Pressures Pressures

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Head of Borough 146 (6) (38) 0 (38)

Solicitor

Democratic Services 1,342 (329) 217 0 217

— Members

allowances

Democratic Services 829 0 (360) 0 (360)

— Elections

Democratic Services 446 0 35 0 35

- Coroners

Democratic Services 1,143 (468) 9 (90) (81)

— Other

Legal Services 1,431 (280) 482 (200) 282

Total 5,337 (1,083) 345 (290) 55

Head of Borough Solicitor - £38k underspend

Underspend is at a similar level to mid year.




Page 62

Democratic Services - £99k underspend overall

Democratic services has improved its outturn position by approximately £100k since
mid year. This is mainly due to further clarity on elections expenditure and income
streams that will be realised by year end as well as those held on legacy systems.

1. Members allowances is overspent by £217k, an improvement of £10k since
mid year, due to travel expenditure and take up of pensions exceeding
estimates by £110k and a budget virement to ICT of £70k. The remaining
budget pressure of £37k was due to inherited budgets being less than
expected.

2. Election budgets are underspent by approximately £360k. This underspend is
still based on a carry forward request of £250k not being deemed necessary
to fund Cheshire East elections in 2010/11 as a request next financial year
would generate the required budget to meet financial expectations.
Participation fund income of £32k and income still left in Crewe’s legacy
systems accounts for a further £35k.

3. The remaining parts of Democratic services are balanced after transitional
funds are used for Tom Stephenson (Elections support), Mike Flynn
(Democratic Services support) and the Community Governance post. Funding
for severance costs of £36k is also anticipated and shown in the remedial
actions column.

4. Coroners is expected to overspend by £42k. It has been recommended that
this area, along with Members allowances, are ring fenced as the budget is
not controllable. Charges from Warrington Borough Council are population
driven and not subject to negotiation.

Legal Services - £482k overspend

This area has worsened by £51k since mid year due to locums still being required to
cover vacancies and assist with heavy workloads. The employment of locums and
their associated expenditure was due to uncertainties over next year's budget and
the delay in populating the structure to ensure adequate budget was in place to meet
the Legal services requirements. Workload issues relate to the requirements from
both corporate departments and front line services. The growth bid of £250k that has
been agreed for 2010/11 should improve next years outturn position but the
identification of an unachievable income target of approximately £42k relating to
inherited budgets and the continuation of planning income being substantially
reduced will mean that next year’s budget will be challenging.



Policy & Performance

Page 63

Service Net Budget | Budgeted | Underlying | Remedial | Net Budget
£000 Savings Budget Actions Pressure
£000 Pressures | £000 £000
£000

Head of P&P 49 (14) 61 (61) 0
Customer 3,624 124 231 (90) 141
Services

Planning & 959 (220) (50) 0 (50)
Performance

Audit 1,003 (206) (90) 0 (90)
CEO & 2,313 (221) 120 (120) 0
Partnerships

Communications 1,347 (650) 453 (311) 142
Total P&P 9,295 (1187) 725 (582) 143

Head of Policy & Performance
No change from Mid Year Review

There is an underlying budget pressure of £61k on the Head of Policy and
Performance budget as budgets from the four legacy councils were not enough to
cover the salary relating to this post. This has been resolved by agreed transition
cost funding in 2009-10 of £61k and an agreed growth bid of £61k for 2010-11
onwards.

Customer Services

Customer Services are forecasting budget pressures of £231k by the end of the
year, an increase of £57k from the Mid Year.

£21k of these are due to one off transactions in the year and are funded by
approved transition cost bids of £12k for Customer Services uniforms and £9k for
the extension of the telephony self delivery pilot.

£69k of redundancy costs are included in the Three Quarter review numbers which
were missing from the Mid Year figures. These are LGR related and so are fully
funded. They are also captured as part of the remedial action figure.

There is a further £141k pressure due to the costs of prudential borrowing on the
CRM and Telephony capital programme. These prudential borrowing costs cannot
be funded from within the Customer Services non staffing budgets and cannot be
absorbed by the wider Policy and Performance budgets.

Many of the items within the capital programme are for the benefit of Cheshire East
council as a whole e.g. Cheshire East website, refurbishment of Delamere House
ground floor and CRM system. The related savings will not appear in the Customer



Page 64

Services and it is therefore difficult for Customer Services to fund the borrowing
costs relating to this expenditure.

The prudential borrowing has reduced by £12k from the mid year review as a result
of further slippage in the capital programme.

Planning & Performance

Planning and Performance are forecasting a £50k under spend at Three Quarter
(compared to net nil at Mid Year). This is as a result of carrying staffing vacancies
for longer than originally predicted during the year. These are expected to be filled
soon and so the full budget will be required for next year.

In addition, the forecast outturn contains £57k of voluntary redundancy costs which
will be absorbed by the service. This was also included in the Mid Year numbers.

Audit

The forecast outturn for Audit is an under spend of £90k at Three Quarter review
(net nil at Mid Year). This is as a result of carrying staffing vacancies for longer than
originally predicted during the year. The vacancies are expected to be filled soon
and so the full budget will be required for next year.

As with Performance, the Audit forecast contains voluntary redundancy costs of
£55k which will be absorbed by the service.

Chief Executive and Partnerships
There is an underlying budget pressure forecast of £120k by the end of 2009-10.

Part of this is due to the Councils commitment to honour the previous years grant
commitments to outside organisations. A £67k payment has been made to Cheshire
Community Action to match the funding they received last year even though there is
no budget to pay for this. It has been agreed to use £67k of the LPSA1 continuation
funding ex Macclesfield BC to fund this grant payment.

The remaining shortfall is due to the creation of the Local Area Partnership (LAP)
structure. Transition funding has been secured for 2009-10 of £375k and a growth
bid of £375k has been approved for future years. It is likely that the full £375k of
transition funding will not be needed this year as the LAP structure has not been in
place for the full year. Early estimates are the transition funding needed will be
between £50k and £100k.

This is a reduction on the transition funding needed which was reported at Mid Year
due to delays in recruiting to the Local Area Partnership structure.

Communications

Communications are forecasting a budget pressure of £453k in 2009-10, a reduction
of £33k on Mid Year.



Page 65

The majority of the budget pressure relates to one off transition spend across the
Council for vehicles, external signage, bus shelters, uniforms etc. The total forecast
for transition costs is £345k and the majority of this is funded by an approved
transition cost funding of £311k. The overspend of £34k on transition costs relates to
spend on internal branding of Emperor Court and Delamere House and internal
notice boards which were not included in the original transition cost bid.

The remaining budget pressure is due to a shortfall in staffing budget. This arises as
Communications did not receive all of the budget they were forecasting from Assets
relating to the Print Unit from the County Council.



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



PEOPLE DIRECTORATE

THREE QUARTER YEAR REVIEW
2009-10 REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN

APPENDIX A

Action Proposed

Net
Savings
2009-10

£000

Permanent
FYE
2010-11
Onwards

£000

Risks/Impact of proposed actions

Progress to date

Risk of not
achieving

High/ Medium/
Low

Use of Right 2 B Cared 4 Grant

44

0

Further pressures and responsibilities on
the service as a result of care matters
legislation may require full utilisation of the
grant in future years to meet the authorities
increased responsibilities.

Will be achieved by year end.

Low/Medium

Staff Vacancies

267

With the establishment of the new service
structure it is unlikely these savings will be
met in future years as full staff quota may
be needed to meet the business objectives
of the new service.

The timeframe for
implementing the new service
structure may delay these
savings being achieved during
2009/10.

Low/Medium

Use of the Staying Put Grant

36

An increase in young people staying in
care and increased fostering allowances
suggest that this budget will be needed in
future years to meet the new activity to the
authority and not to help support existing
Looked After Children.

Will be achieved by year end.

Low/Medium

/9 obed

Use of the Care Matters Grant

185

The ABG has been used to support the
increased number of Foster placements as
a result of an increase in young people
staying in care.

Will be achieved by year end.

Low/Medium

Foster Care Placements — base budget

160

Since MYR due to the overspend situation
in CSC the service have offered further
base budget to help alleviate the outturn
position. This is a one off in 2009-10.

Will be achieved by year end.

Low/Medium

Multi Professional Support Team —
CAMHS Grant

85

Vacancies are being held in CWP and not
being appointed to due to CE and CWP
being unable to agree legal terms and
conditions of the vacant posts.

Will be achieved by year end.

Low/Medium

Advanced Practitioner Training Grant

32

Due to service pressures the use of this

Will be achieved by year end.

Low/Medium




CWDC

grant has been diverted to help alleviate
the workforce development outturn
position.

Use of Surestart Grant

879

Since MYR the service have estimated an
under spend in relation to Children’s
centres due to recruitment issues. This will
be used as remedial but has yet to be
determined by the service.

Will be achieved by year end.

Low/Medium

Part Year Effect of Staff Restructure in
Children and Families

170

The Children and Families restructure is
due to take effect during February 2010
and this will lead to some part year effect
savings.

Saving can only be achieved is
if the restructure is
implemented

Medium

Carers Grant

200

200

The Carers Grant has previously been
used to support direct payments. This will
be required in 2009-10 and subsequent
years in order to alleviate budget
pressures.

Will be achieved by year end.

Low/Medium

2% Target Reduction for Care

500

This relates to a 2% target reduction in
care costs. This is before the impact that
the review assessments conducted by the
RaRe team are accounted for.

Will be achieved by year end.

Medium

g9 obed

Community Equipment Retail Model

200

The service will look to use the equipment
provided by the Community Equipment
Retail Model to limit the cost impact of care
packages.

Will be achieved by year end.

Medium

Part Year Effect of Staff Restructure in
Provider Services

200

The staff restructure in Provider Services
will be implemented in January 2010 and
this will lead to a part year saving of
reduced staff costs.

Will be achieved by year end.

Low

Use of Temporary Funding (Adults)

4,600

The savings associated with the service
redesign have not been fully achieved
during 2009/10. Temporary funding will be
utilised to support the service.

Achieved (Temporary
Funding)

Low

TOTAL

7,558

200




PLACES DIRECTORATE

THREE QUARTER YEAR REVIEW
2009-10 REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN

APPENDIX B

Permanent R':';tOf
Act Sat?ntgs 20'%'_511 Risks/Impact of proposed actions Progress to date achieving
ction Proposed 2009-10 Onwards .
High/
£000 £000 Medium/
ow
One off use of reserves to meet budget
Departmental — use of earmarked overspend in 2009-10. The MTFS process has
reserves and supplementary 1,075 i addressed areas of budget pressure and will | Will be achieved by year-end Low
revenue estimates provide a permanent solution to potential ongoing
areas of overspend.
Accelerated savings from MTFS proposals —
Spatial Planning 170 115 budget will be set in 2010-11 to achieve Service | Will be achieved by year-end Low o
objectives whilst minimising risk. 8
Accelerated savings from MTFS proposals — o
Development Management 160 100 budget will be set in 2010-11 to achieve Service | Will be achieved by year-end Low S
objectives whilst minimising risk.
Housing Strategy 30 ) Se;ryice .has assessed the savings as having Achieved. Low
minimal impact.
_Sl_trateglc Hl_ghways & 50 - Expenditure deferred to 2010-11. Will be achieved by year-end Low
ransportation
Accelerated savings from MTFS proposals —
Economic Development 153 150 budget will be set in 2010-11 to achieve Service | Will be achieved by year-end Low
objectives whilst minimising risk.
Accelerated savings from MTFS proposals —
Visitor Economy - tourism promotion 20 20 budget will be set in 2010-11 to achieve Service | Achieved Low
objectives whilst minimising risk.
Head of Waste non-pay 15 ) No risk — appointment made part way through the Achieved. Low

year which has realised savings.




Highways Services — reduction in

Savings should be achieved whilst ensuring that

Not yet identified: proposed that
savings would be realised through

uLoFPca

; 144 - the priorities identified in the highways | a reduction in overtime, agency High
operational costs .
maintenance programme are met. staff costs and non-urgent
highway maintenance.
There will be no impact on the overall condition
Highways Services — capitalisation of the highway as a result of the capitalisation of
: . 740 750 £740k of structural maintenance, the cost of Will be achieved by year-end Low
of repairs/ maintenance . X ,
which will be met from a review of departmental
capital projects.
Directorate — training 160 i Some training activity has beep deferred pending Achieved. Low
structure design and the appointments process.
Reduction in expenditure on waste minimisation | Savings in expenditure have been
Waste minimisation initiatives 94 - initiatives could result in a reduced level of | identified against the budget of Low
recycling. £476Kk. ;
Waste — contract procurement non- 15 i !Dart gf non-pay budget: risks have yet to be II:looV\\/lenisgtral t%fere?é(feend:}vl;ﬁe gg Low %
pay identified. .
achieved. -
Voluntary redundancies 50 50 Redundancies .have been targeted to minimise | Voluntary = redundancies have Low C
risk to the Service. been agreed.
No risk - two ftes have left and will not be
Recycling — pay 16 - replaced as the 2009/10 structure has been Achieved. Low
achieved.
Streetscape and Bereavement — 15 i There is no risk attached to this action as the Achieved Low
year of garden budget is not required in 2009-10. )
Non-pay expenditure to date is
Detailed non-pay budgets are subject to analysis | currently showing a nil variance
Safer & Stronger non-pay 110 - and review. Potential risks have not yet been against budget with the exception | Medium
identified. of the Emergency Planning
recharge from CWAC.
Part of the non-pay parking budget relates to | The non-pay budgets for Car
Car Parking non-pay 40 ) potential costs associated with On Street | Parking are currently being Medium
Parking. These costs did not materialise in | analysed and allocated to
2008/09 and are unlikely to arise during 2009/10. | individual expense codes.
Emergency Planning Shared 40 i Shared service dependent on CWAC achieving Will be met at year end. Low

Service

savings.




The Environmental Health budget includes £95k

The budget is showing a

Environmental Health non-pay 40 - in respect of equipment, consultancy and | favourable variance to the end of Low
miscellaneous expenses. November.
Minimal risk provided that the Crime and
Increase in income generation — 40 ) Disorder Reduction Partnership achieve a | Additional second homes tax Low
community safety balanced budget and Basic command Unit | identified and secured.
funding is received.
TOTAL 3,177 1,185

1, 8bed



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



THREE QUARTER YEAR REVIEW
2009-10 REMEDIAL ACTION PLAN

PERFORMANCE & CAPACITY DIRECTORATE

APPENDIX C

Permanent Risk of
Net FYE ] ] Progress to date r_lot_
_ Savings 2010-11 Risks/Impact of proposed actions achieving
Action Proposed 200910 | Onwards .
High/
£000 £000 Mf_f;;‘lm’
Use of transitional funds that are 4,964 0 The risk is of over committing the fund but | £5.1m bids have been received but Low
available in 2009/10 only. This only bids have been monitored and it is unlikely | it is likely that some services will
affects those services that are that the fund will be overspent. achieve an underspend and
predicting their outturn to be overspent. therefore not require the use of the
fund.
Use of severance funds that are 3,079 0 The risk is of over committing the fund but | HR have produced some analysis Low
available to support the voluntary work is ongoing to ensure that an agreed that shows the impact of VR in all
redundancy process in 2009/10. This level of reserves is used for this one off the services. There is still some
only affects those services that are activity. work to do relating to the Shared
predicting their outturn to be overspent. Services area where cost sharing
arrangements need to be agreed.
TOTAL 8,043 0

€. abed



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Matters for Decision - Requests for Supplementary Capital Estimates (SCEs) & Virements

Virement FROM ...

Starts Amount SCE/ Starts Amount
Capital Scheme Year Requested |Virement [Funding of SCE/Virement Year Requested
£ £
Chief Officers in consultation with relevant Cabinet Member and Resources Member are asked to approve SCE and Virements over £100.000 and up to and including £500,000
People
Children & Young People
Brine Leas Sixth Form 2008/09 192,202|Virement Schools - Access Initiative 2009/10 192,202
Health & Wellbeing
Macclesfield Canal Footbridge 2008/09 131,000|SCE Other Contributions - Wren 50,000
SCE Other Contributions - Bollington CS 1,000
SCE Other Contributions - S106 30,000
SCE Other Contributions - LTP 10,000
SCE Other Contributions - LABGI 10,000
SCE Other Contributions - Planning 30,000
Lower Heath Play Space Renewal 2009/10 120,000|SCE Other Contribution 2009/10 120,000
Places
Environmental Services
De-Trunked Rds - A51 Millstone Lane, Nantwich 2009-10 112,700| Virement |Local Area Programme - South 2009-10 112,700
Non-Principal Roads - Minor Works 2009-10 495,800| Virement [Business Development Land 2008-09 495,800
Principal Roads - Minor Works 2009-10 244,200| Virement |Business Development Land 2008-09 4,200
Outdoor Market Covered Stand 2008-09 200,000
New Cemetery Land/Inf/Extns - Weston 2008-09 40,000
Regeneration
Tatton Park Conservatory/Orangery 2009-10 160,000 | Virement |New Cemetery Land/Inf/Extns - Weston 2008-09 73,000
Claims 2002-03 27,000
Nantwich Old Mill Wall 2008-09 23,000
Nantwich Market Town Initiative 2008-09 15,000
Art in a Roundabout way 2008-09 20,000
Housing Efficiency Grants 2008-09 2,000
Cabinet are asked to approve SCE and Virements over £500,000 and up to and including £1.0m
People
Children & Young People
Kings Grove Mobile Replacement 2009/10 790,000(Virement Schools - Modernisation Programme 2009/10 574,000
SCE DFC 2009/10 100,000
SCE School Contribution 2009/10 116,000
Council are asked to approve SCE and Virements over £1.0m
Places
Planning & Policy
Housing Grants - Ex MBC - S106 2008-09 1,044,904 | SCE Fully Funded - S106 contribution from MBC 1,044,904
Total value of Supplementary Capital Estimates/Virements 3,290,806

Appendix 2a

G/ abed



Appendix 2a

9/ abed



Delegated Decisions - Requests for Supplementary Capital Estimates (SCEs) & Virements

Appendix 2b

Virement FROM ...

Starts Amount SCE/ Starts Amount
Capital Scheme Year Requested |Virement |Funding of SCE/Virement Year Requested
£ £
Chief Officers are asked to approve SCE and Virements up to and including £100,000
People
Children & Young People
Land Drainage MWK 09-10 16,500(SCE Other Contributions 2009/10 16,500
Schools - Minor Works (Basic Need) 19,123|SCE Styles 0607 DFC allocation 2006/07 19,123
Childrens Homes Rationalisation 9,470|SCE Revenue Contribution 2009/10 9,470
Health & Wellbeing
Shavington H&F Community 46,137|SCE Capital Reserve 2008/09 46,137
Middlewood Way Fpath Repairs 1,706|SCE Capital Reserve 2008/09 1,706
Cumberland Infield Floodlight 10,180|Virement |Alsager LC - Electrical Dist Board 2008/09 1,000
Barony Park Astro-turf 2008/09 9,180
Piggenshaw Brook (moved from Places) 49,000|SCE Other Contribution 2008/09 49,000
Congleton Park & St Johns Rd Improvements{2009/10 81,986(SCE Other Contribution 2009/10 81,986
Milton Park/Alsager Skate Park 18,368|SCE Capital Reserve 2009/10 18,368
Places
Environmental Services
Bridge Maintenance - Minor Works 2009-10 10,000( Virement |Crewe Green Link 2004-05 10,000
Safe & Stronger Communities
Air Quality Monitoring Equipment 2008-09 14,500| SCE Fully Funded by DEFRA Grant 14,500
Antrobus Street Car Park 2008-09 18,000| Virement |P&C - Assets - Urgent Safety Works 18,000
Antrobus Street Car Park 2008-09 4,000| Virement |P&C - Assets - Asbestos Remedial Works 4,000

// abed



Delegated Decisions - Requests for Supplementary Capital Estimates (SCEs) & Virements

Appendix 2b

Virement FROM ...

Starts Amount SCE/ Starts Amount
Capital Scheme Year Requested |Virement |Funding of SCE/Virement Year Requested
£ £
Antrobus Street Car Park 2008-09 7,000 Virement |P&C - Assets - Premise Imp Works 7,000
Planning & Policy
Market Square Crewe, Interim Imps 2008-09 28,000 | Virement [Crewe Town Squares/ Shopping Facilities Refurbish|2008-09 28,000
Regeneration
Alderley Edge By Pass - Proj Dev 2004-05 70,000 | Virement |Project Development - Minor Schemes 2009-10 70,000
Capital Programme Management 2008-09 31,000 | Virement [New Cemetery Land/Inf/Extns - Weston 2008-09 31,000
S278's
Maplewood, Macclesfield 2009-10 500 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2009-10 500
Waitrose, Poynton 2009-10 3,000 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2009-10 3,000
Coronation Street, Crewe 2009-10 500 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2009-10 500
Stafford Street, Crewe 2008-09 1,350 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2008-09 1,350
Basford West, Crewe 2008-09 2,783 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2008-09 2,783
Red Lion Lane, Nantwich 2008-09 5,690 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2008-09 5,690
Macclesfield Learning 2006-07 41,229 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2006-07 41,229
A51 Nantwich Rd, Wardle 2006-07 1,419 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2006-07 1,419
Electra Way, Crewe 2006-07 856 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2006-07 856
A534 Nantwich Road 2006-07 838 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2006-07 838
Dunwoody Way - Health Centre 2005-06 7,000 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2005-06 7,000
Rope Lane, Wistaston 2005-06 532 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2005-06 532
A533 Old Mill Road, Sandbach 2005-06 6,404 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2005-06 6,404
A531 Main Road, Ped Crossing 2004-05 6,262 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2004-05 6,262
Flag Lane Link (Redrow) 2004-05 16,174 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2004-05 16,174
B5085 Town Lane, Mobberley 2003-04 14,216 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2003-04 14,216
Roldane Mill, Congleton 2002-03 1,475 | SCE Fully funded by Developer Contributions 2002-03 1,475

g/ abed



Delegated Decisions - Requests for Supplementary Capital Estimates (SCEs) & Virements

Appendix 2b

Virement FROM ...

Starts Amount SCE/ Starts Amount
Capital Scheme Year Requested |Virement |Funding of SCE/Virement Year Requested
£ £
Performance & Capacity
Assets
Wheelock St 2008/09 |- 100,000 | Reduction|Wheelock St -100,000
Disability Compliance Work 15,000 | Virement [Fixed Electrical Installation 15,000
Fire Risks Assessment 32,000 | Virement |Fixed Electrical Installation 32,000
Antrobus Street Car Park 18,000 | Virement [Urgent Safety Works 18,000
Antrobus Street Car Park 4,000 | Virement |Asbestos Remedial Works 4,000
Antrobus Street Car Park 7,000 | Virement [Premise Improvement Works 7,000
ICT Small Projects Block 5,000 | Virement [New Developments - Schemes under £100k 5,000
ICT Small Projects Block 70,000 | Virement |Internet 70,000
ICT Small Projects Block 10,000 | Virement [CRAG Phase 4 10,000
ICT Small Projects Block 5,000 | Virement [Shared Services 5,000
ICT Small Projects Block 6,000 | Virement [e-Payments 6,000
ICT Small Projects Block 12,000 | Virement [UPS for Core CCC 12,000
ICT Small Projects Block 2,000 | Virement |CLI for 999 calls 2,000
ICT Small Projects Block 19,000 | Virement [Network Readiness 19,000
ICT Small Projects Block 2,000 | Virement |MS Projects Server 2,000
ICT Small Projects Block 2,000 [ Virement [Time Recording using Business Objects 2,000
ICT Small Projects Block 3,000 | Virement [Internet Extension to districts 3,000
ICT Small Projects Block 18,000 [ Virement [Archiving and Managing Legacy 18,000
ICT Small Projects Block 30,000 | Virement |Windows 2003 Corp Serv Upgrade 30,000
ICT Small Projects Block 36,000 | Virement [Upgrade to Corporate Telephone 36,000
ICT Small Projects Block 45,000 | Virement |Real Time Monitoring 45,000
ICT Small Projects Block 36,000 | Virement |Electronic Social Care 36,000
ICT Investment - 100,000 | Reduction [ICT Investment -100,000

6/, obed



Delegated Decisions - Requests for Supplementary Capital Estimates (SCEs) & Virements

Appendix 2b

Virement FROM ...

Starts Amount SCE/ Starts Amount
Capital Scheme Year Requested |Virement [Funding of SCE/Virement Year Requested
£ £
HR
Accident Reporting system 2009-10 18,000 | Virement [From Revenue within HR 2009-10 18,000
Policy & Performance
Performance Management System 2009-10 100,000 | SCE From capital reserves 2010-11 100,000
Total Delegated Decisions 840,198 840,198

08 abed



Matters for Decision - Requests for reductions in Approved Budgets

Appendix 2c

Scheme Approved Revised Reduction Reason
Budget Approval
£ £ £
PEOPLE
Chris Marsden expects the Modernisation ICT Programme to comprise £369k from
Modernising ICT Delivery 811,000 638,000 173,000[{Cheshire East. (comments from Adults)
Adults workforce Census East 37,920 14,920 23,000{Underspend against original budge
848,920 652,920 196,000
PLACES
2009-10 Bridge Maintenance Minor Works 1,266,987 1,196,987 70,000(Bolderstones Bridge cannot be delivered in 09-10 - Removal of grant budget approval
1,266,987 1,196,987 70,000
PERFORMANCE & CAPACITY
Wheelock Street 112,000 12,000 100,000(No longer required as staff moved to Municipal Buildings
The £100k was funding due from the sale of Delamere House as part of Crewe Town
ICT Investment 248,000 148,000 100,000|Centre regeneration - not materialised
360,000 160,000 200,000
Totals 2,475,907| 2,009,907 466,000

18 abed



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE EAST - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2009-10
Three Quarter Review 2009-10

Appendix 3

Total Prior In Year Actuals Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total Forecast | Variance From

Department/Scheme Project Number Department Agz(r;;\:d Year Spend Budget To eng: f Novy Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure Expenditure Totatlnﬁir;zoved
2009-10 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
People
Ongoing Schemes
Devolved Formula Capital 07-08 East 40ABCDFC0700001 Children & Families 5,170 3,738 950 1,014 1,261 171 5,170 0
Replacement to Mobile Classrooms East 40ABCMOB0700001 Children & Families 0 0 0 0 0 0
Oakenclough PS 40AACCC21606605 Children & Families 980 970 0 10 10 980 0
TLC Dean Oak's PS 40ADCEXT 1183001 Children & Families 3,187 2,324 863 777 833 30 3,187 0
TLC Sir William Stanier Comm S 40AECRAT 1458001 Children & Families 21,598 13,043 8,477 5,139 8,341 215 21,599 1
TLC Vernons PS Amalgamation 40ADCRAT1185001 Children & Families 3,753 174 3,079 1,215 3,379 200 3,753 0
Devolved Formula Capital 06-07 East 40ABCDFC0600001 Children & Families 4,765 4,492 273 238 238 4,730 -35
Macc Reorg Rebuild Park Lane 40AECNEW1435001 Children & Families 15,057 15,058 0 0 0 15,058 1
Integrated Children's Systems (ICS) 08-09 East 40ABCICT0800001 Children & Families 922 112 567 106 154 656 922 1
Children's Workforce Dev Sys East 40ABCICT0800002 Children & Families 70 0 70 0 70 70 0
Adults workforce Census East 40ABCICT0800003 Children & Families 38 0 38 0 15 15 -23
Devolved Formula Cap 08-09 East 40ABCDFC0800000 Children & Families 5,131 1,764 2,000 961 1,042 1,958 367 5,131 0
County Minor Works 08-09 East 40ABCMWKO0800000 Children & Families 0 0 0 7 0 0 0
Gorsey Bank Floor Repair 40ADCREF 1152001 Children & Families 1,768 210 1,558 741 1,487 71 1,768 0
Repairs to Mobile Classroom Ext Schs East 40ABCMWKO0800007 Children & Families 100 0 100 10 100 100 0
Feasibility Studies 08-09 East 40ABCMWK0800005 Children & Families 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Land Drainage 08-09 East 40ABCMWK0800003 Children & Families 57 37 20 20 20 57 1
Partnership/ H & S East 40ABCMWK0800001 Children & Families 13 0 13 0 13 13 1
Harnessing Technology East 40ABCICT0800004 Children & Families 1,091 357 734 734 734 1,091 0
Access Initiative 08-09 East 40ABCACS0800001 Children & Families 146 9 137 81 137 146 0
Childrens Homes Rationalisation 40AACRAT0800001 Children & Families 1,000 939 61 28 70 1,009 9
Childrens Centres Ph3 East 40AACCC30800001 Children & Families 213 0 213 0 213 213 0
ICT Childrens Centres Ph3 East 40AACPH30800002 Children & Families 125 0 104 30 59 66 125 0
Shavington Childrens Centres Ph3 40AACCC31606630 Children & Families 543 1 532 261 532 543 0
Wilmslow Library Childrens Centres Ph3 40AACCC31606628 Children & Families 61 0 61 0 61 61 0
Holmes Chapel Library Childrens Centres Ph3 40AACCC31606624 Children & Families 5 0 5 0 5 5 0
Mablins Lane Childrens Centres Ph3 40AACCC31606631 Children & Families 756 13 743 344 743 756 0
Daven Childrens Centres Ph3 40AACCC31606610 Children & Families 347 32 315 264 315 347 1
East Cheshire Minor Works Ph3 40AACCC30800003 Children & Families 331 0 198 57 198 132 330 -1
Sandbach Childrens Centres Ph3 40AACCC31606626 Children & Families 77 0 100 30 0 77 77 0
East Rural Programme Ph3 40AACCC31606615 Children & Families 150 0 0 0 0 150 150 0
Brine Leas Sixth Form 40AECEXT1452001 Children & Families 7,311 314 2,922 1,645 3,650 3,540 7,503 192
Brine Leas HS - Sports Hall 40AECNEW1452001 Children & Families 410 410 0 0 0 410 0
2008-09 Building Review Block 40A3CBRB0800001 Adults 192 90 102 17 0 102 192 0
CA ICT Schemes 08 40A3CICT0800005 Adults 0 0 0 0 0 0
Extra Care Housing 40ALCOTHO0800004 Adults 3,067 80 1,850 0 450 1,969 568 3,067 0
Libraries Facilities 40AQCOTHO0800005 Health & Wellbeing 500 60 440 48 440 500 0
Modernising ICT Delivery 40ALCICT0700005 Adults 811 269 542 0 229 140 638 -173
Enabling Model of Social Care 40ALCICT0700006 Adults 58 0 58 0 58 58 0
Cranage Bowling Green & Pavilion refurbishment 40APCREF0700001 Health & Wellbeing 20 1 19 0 9 10 20 0
Nantwich Pool Enhancements (part-funding) 40APCREF0700002 Health & Wellbeing 1,385 0 0 0 0 700 335 350 1,385 0
Shavington Community Health & Fitness Centre 40APCOTH0700002 Health & Wellbeing 360 6 354 364 400 406 46
Bridges and other structures on Middlewood Way 40APCOTH0800007 Health & Wellbeing 828 590 135 86 135 103 828 0
Home Access for Targeted groups East 40ABCICT0900011 Children & Families 132 0 132 0 132 132 0
Alsager Highfields Toilet adaptations 40ADCAPT1338001 Children & Families 215 7 208 213 193 15 215 0
Alsager Health Centre Ph3 40AACCC31606627 Children & Families 11 0 11 0 11 11 0
SCP Childrens Services 40AACCSC0800001 Children & Families 47 11 36 0 36 47 0
Kings Grove High School, Crewe 40AECSPC1455005 Children & Families 150 20 130 0 100 30 150 0
Redesignation of Specialist Schools 40ABCSPE0800002 Children & Families 100 0 100 0 100 100 0
IS for Parents & Providers East 40AACOTH0800001 Children & Families 18 9 9 9 9 18 0
Manor Park PS 40AACCC21606609 Children & Families 734 719 15 0 15 734 0
Monks Coppenhall 40AACCC1606602 Children & Families 1,472 1,428 0 5 5 1,433 -39
TLC 2006-07 East 40ACCTLC0600001 Children & Families 246 246 100 0 0 246 0
TLC Oakefield Prim&Nursery Sch 40ADCRAT1318001 Children & Families 2,037 2,028 8 0 8 2,036 -1
Playground Mark Phase1 NOF East 40ABCBLF0400001 Children & Families 116 98 18 3 18 116 0
Refurb Day Cent Mountview 40A3COTH0800012 Adults 40 3 37 26 37 40 0
Maint Old Peoples Centres 40A3COTH0800013 Adults 24 19 5 5 5 24 0
Mayfield Centre 40A3COTH0800027 Adults 10 4 6 0 6 10 0
Mental Health Provider 40A3COTH0800014 Adults 226 146 79 0 80 226 0
Cypress House CSC Misters 08-09 40A3COTH0800028 Adults 75 0 75 68 75 75 0
Middlewood Way Fencing 40APCOTH0800031 Health & Wellbeing 69 45 24 10 24 69 0
Middlewood Way Footpath Repairs/Countryparks Footpaths 40APCOTHO0800026/25 |Health & Wellbeing 126 7 119 94 119 0 126 0
Middlewood Way Viaduct Repairs 40APCOTH0800040 Health & Wellbeing 546 460 86 0 28 58 546 0
Macclesfield Canal Footbridge 40APCOTH0800020 Health & Wellbeing 30 0 30 168 161 161 131
Bollington Rec Ground - Green Flag Status 40APCOTH0800022 Health & Wellbeing 140 135 5 3 5 140 0

cg abed



CHESHIRE EAST - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2009-10
Three Quarter Review 2009-10

Appendix 3

Total Prior In Year Actuals Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total Forecast | Variance From
Department/Scheme Project Number Department Agz(r;;\:d Year Spend Budget To eng: f Novy Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure Expenditure Totatlnﬁir;zoved
2009-10 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

The Moor, Knutsford - Green Flag Status 40APCOTHO0800023 Health & Wellbeing 112 99 13 8 13 112 0
Alderley Park Tennis Courts 40APCOTH0800017 Health & Wellbeing 28 26 2 0 2 28 0
Springfield Road Allotments 40APCOTH0800018 Health & Wellbeing 36 0 36 0 0 36 36 0
Bromley Farm "Kick About" Area 40APCOTH0800034 Health & Wellbeing 47 25 22 21 22 47 0
Lawton Green Landscaping 40APCOTH0900010 Health & Wellbeing 8 0 8 0 8 8 0
Alsager Skate Park/Milton Park 40APCOTH0800035 Health & Wellbeing 9 2 7 2 7 18 27 18
Allotment Improvements 40APCOTH0800036 Health & Wellbeing 15 12 3 0 3 15 0
Play Area Improvements 40APCOTH0800037 Health & Wellbeing 100 80 20 0 20 100 0
Congleton Park Community Store 40APCOTHO0800038 Health & Wellbeing 65 6 59 0 59 65 0
Sandbach Park Building Refurbish 40APCOTH0800039 Health & Wellbeing 29 9 20 0 0 20 29 0
Legionella Works (Joint Use) 40APCOTHO0800032 Health & Wellbeing 26 14 12 0 12 26 0
Improving Leisure Facilities 40APCOTH0800041 Health & Wellbeing 55 46 9 0 9 55 0
Alsager LC - Electrical Dist Board 40APCOTH0800042 Health & Wellbeing 13 9 3 0 3 12 -1
Cumberland Infield Floodlighting 40APCOTH0800010 Health & Wellbeing 72 4 68 86 78 82 10
Barony Park Astro-turf 40APCOTH0800011 Health & Wellbeing 60 5 55 45 45 50 -10
BMX Track (Drainage & Improvements) 40APCYTH0800003 Health & Wellbeing 54 44 10 0 10 54 0
Playgrounds 40APCYTHO0800002 Health & Wellbeing 64 43 21 0 21 64 0
Wilmslow LC Plant and Equip 40APCOTH0800029 Health & Wellbeing 22 0 0 17 22 22 0
Crewe Pool Health & Safety Works 40APCOTHO0800030 Health & Wellbeing 270 0 270 201 270 270 0
Improvements to Congleton Park 40APCOTH0800033 Health & Wellbeing 35 0 35 0 0 35 35 0
Piggenshaw Brook (moved from Places) - need new code 40CDCAP-RM00003 Regeneration 56 6 50 0 99 105 49
Total On-going schemes 90,773 50,918 29,590 15,212 27,272 11,142 1,270 350 90,951 178
New Starts 2009-10

Schools - Minor Works (Basic Need) 40ABCMWK0900000 Children & Families 563 0 162 50 109 473 582 19
Feasibility 09-10 40ABCMWK0900005 Children & Families 50 0 50 1 50 50 0
VA Contributions 09-10 40ABCMWK0900002 Children & Families 50 0 50 0 0 50 50 0
Land Block 09-10 40ABCMWK0900006 Children & Families 50 0 50 0 0 50 50 0
Land Drainage MWK 09-10 40ABCMWK0900003 Children & Families 60 0 60 51 57 20 77 17
Asset Management Children & Families 0 0 0 0 0 0
Staff/Equipment Children & Families 0 0 0 0 0 0
Schools - Access Initiative 40ABCACS0900001 Children & Families 668 0 501 3 253 223 476 -192
Children's Social Care 40AACCSC0900001 Children & Families 36 0 36 0 36 36 0
Devolved Formula Capital 40ABCDFC0900001 Children & Families 5,693 0 2,500 936 1,500 2,500 1,693 5,693 0
Extended Schools 40AACEXT0900001 Children & Families 363 0 100 0 100 263 363 0
Specialist Schools 40ABCSPE0900001 Children & Families 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Springfield Spec School not yet set up Children & Families 120 0 90 0 90 30 120 0
Harnessing Technology 40ABCICT0900004 Children & Families 801 0 630 110 467 334 801 0
14-19 diploma 40ABCDIP0900001 Children & Families 1,000 0 700 0 300 700 1,000 0
SureStart Aiming High for Disabled Children 40AACAIM0900001 Children & Families 168 0 168 0 66 102 168 0
Primary Capital Programme 40ABCPCP0900001 Children & Families 535 0 0 0 0 324 324 -211
Cledford TLC Scheme 40ADCRAT1367001 Children & Families 3,289 0 1,219 138 830 2,459 3,289 0
Contact Point / Further Dev of Children's Hub/ e-CAF 40ABCICT0900007 Children & Families 382 0 229 16 100 231 51 382 0
Wilmslow Specialist Sports College 40AECSPE1437001 Children & Families 616 0 5 0 5 611 616 0
Capital for Kitchen & Dining Facilities 40ABCKIT0900001 Children & Families 600 0 200 0 200 400 0 600 0
Building Review 40A3CBRB0900001 Adults 180 0 180 0 0 180 180 0
Mental Health Capital 40A3CMHC0900001 Adults 99 0 99 0 33 66 99 0
Social Care IT Infrastructure 40A3CICT0900005 Adults 96 0 96 0 11 85 96 0
Common Assessment Framework 40A3CCAF0900001 Adults 50 0 50 0 50 50 0
Common Assessment Framework - Demonstrator Bid Adults 2,234 0 169 0 169 1,000 1,065 2,234 0
Community Services Flexible and Mobile working 40AMCICT0900008 Adults 650 0 650 124 650 650 0
Play Capital 40APCOTHO0900008 Health & Wellbeing 1,100 0 473 128 473 627 1,100 0
Leisure Centre General Equipment 40ARCOTHO0900009 Health & Wellbeing 32 0 32 0 45 45 13
Libraries RFID - Self service 40AQCICT0900009 Health & Wellbeing 0 0 0 33 0 0 0
LTP - Public Right of Way Improvements 40APCLTP0900001 Health & Wellbeing 24 0 24 15 24 24 0
National Dementia Strategy - Lincoln House 40ALCOTH0800033 Adults 1,000 0 1,000 8 850 150 1,000 0
National Dementia Strategy - Hollins View 40ALCOTH0800032 Adults 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Devolved Formula Capital in Advance 40ABCDFC1000001 Children & Families 2,277 0 1,050 605 620 1,180 427 50 2,277 0
Primary School & YOT Extension repairs 40ABCOTH0900034 Children & Families 230 0 230 40 40 190 230 0
Schools - Modernisation Programme 40ABCMOD0900001 Children & Families 574 0 574 0 0 0 -574
Kings Grove Mobile Replacement Kings Grove Mobile Repl{Children & Families 0 0 0 0 70 720 790 790
The Dingle Refurbishment 40ADCREF 1312001 Children & Families 172 0 172 172 172 172 0
Stapely Broad Lane PS - Replacement of temp accommodation. 40ADCMOB1299001 Children & Families 906 0 70 0 70 836 906 0
Offley Primary School 40ADCRAT1365001 Children & Families 845 0 57 0 57 788 845 0
Christ the king Catholic & C of E PS 40ADCRAT0000000 Children & Families 3,039 0 189 0 189 2,850 3,039 0
Christ the king Catholic & C of E PS - Phase 1 40ADCRATO0000001 Children & Families 211 0 211 0 211 211 0

g abed



CHESHIRE EAST - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2009-10
Three Quarter Review 2009-10

Appendix 3

Total Prior In Year Actuals Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total Forecast | Variance From
Department/Scheme Project Number Department Agz(r;;\:d Year Spend Budget To eng: f Novy Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure Expenditure Totatlnﬁir;zoved
2009-10 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Community Support Centre (CSC) Misters 40A3COTH0900028 Adults 280 0 280 0 108 172 280 0
Sandbach United Football complex 40APCOTH0800043 Health & Wellbeing 2,200 0 2,200 0 0 2,200 2,200 0
Swim for Free Capital 40APCOTHO0900011 Health & Wellbeing 128 0 128 0 108 20 128 0
Sandbach Park 40APCOTH0900012 Health & Wellbeing 128 0 128 0 0 128 128 0
Demolition of Carrs Pavilion - Ticket Office 40APCOTH0900009 Health & Wellbeing 13 0 13 0 13 13 0
Lower Heath Play Space Renewal, Health & Wellbeing 0 0 0 0 6 114 120 120
Congleton Park Improvements - Town Wood Health & Wellbeing 0 0 0 0 0 82 82 82

31,512 0 14,825 2,431 8,132 20,158 3,236 50 31,576 64
Total People Programme 122,285 50,918 44,415 17,643 35,404 31,300 4,506 400 122,527 242
Places
Ongoing Schemes
Section 278 Agreements (2007-08) Various Regeneration 148 21 59 5 9 2 32 -116
A538 Altrincham Rd, Wilmslow-Cycle path & Assoc Wks 40CACAP-CM00019 Environmental Services 200 0 100 0 100 100 200 0
Section 278 Agreements (2006-07) Various Regeneration 515 175 357 17 354 529 14
Alderley Edge By-Pass Scheme Implementation 40CDCAP-CMO00006 Environmental Services 51,600 6,178 24,930 14,905 26,900 15,340 3,182 51,600 0
Section 278 Agreements (2005-06) Various Regeneration 192 132 7 1 3 135 -57
Section 278 Agreements (2004-05) Various Regeneration 178 160 26 7 15 12 187 9
Section 278 Agreements (2003-04) Various Regeneration 208 170 12 28 29 7 206 -2
Section 278 Agreements (2002-03) Various Regeneration 32 33 1 0 1 34 2
Section 278 Agreements (pre 2002-03) Various Regeneration 678 648 123 -1 1 649 -29
Septic Tanks-Rural Properties 40CCCAP-CT00002 Planning & Policy 315 194 41 0 41 40 40 315 0
Improvements to Chapel Street Car Park 40CACAP-CT00049 Safer & Stronger Commur] 165 3 162 0 162 165 0
Choice Based Lettings 40CCCAP-CT00001 Planning & Policy 232 59 173 0 173 232 0
Queens Park Restoration 40CACAP-CN00043 Environmental Services 6,477 2,238 4,239 282 1,350 2,889 6,477 0
Crewe Town Squares/ Shopping Facilities Refurbishment & Toilets 40CDCAP-CN00069 Regeneration 3,174 1,846 0 0 0 1,300 3,146 -28
Crewe Town Squares - Lyceum Square 40CACAP-CN00049 Regeneration 1,866 166 1,360 15 1,100 600 1,866 0
Crewe and Macc HWRCs 40CACAP-WNO00001 Environmental Services 870 117 736 4 736 17 870 0
Road Safety Schemes - Minor Works 40CACAP-C08B10001 |Regeneration 126 1 125 20 125 126 0
Connect2 - Crewe & Nantwich Greenway 40CACAP-CN00042 Regeneration 530 0 530 17 530 530 0
Parkgate 40CDCAP-CMO00047 Regeneration 2,382 72 0 123 250 2,059 2,381 -1
Section 278 Agreements - (2008-09) Various Regeneration 347 34 221 12 26 83 143 -204
Flowerpot Junction Improvements 40CACAP-CM00020 Environmental Services 1,032 925 73 30 73 998 -34
Claims 40CDCAP-CH00004 Regeneration 30 3 27 0 0 3 -27
Bus Quality Partnership/Public Transport Improvements Regeneration 120 100 20 0 20 120 0
Tatton Park - Farm Entrance 40CDCAP-RM00002 Regeneration 30 20 10 0 10 30 0
Tatton Park - Boundary Fence 40CDCAP-RM00001 Regeneration 203 201 2 0 2 203 0
Pyms Lane Closed Landfill Site 40CACAP-WN00002 Environmental Services 47 5 42 0 42 47 0
Alsager Closed Landfill Site 40CACAP-WT00002 Environmental Services 100 0 100 0 100 100 0
Closed Landfill Sites - Maint & Improvements 40CACAP-WH00003 Environmental Services 2 0 2 0 0 0 -2
Newgate Gas Works 40CACAP-WMO00001 Environmental Services 258 173 85 85 85 258 0
Merelake Way Bridge Repairs 40CACAP-CT00060 Environmental Services 54 25 28 28 29 54 0
St Peters Retaining Wall 40CACAP-CT00079 Environmental Services 113 91 22 20 22 113 0
Dane Embankment Repairs 40CACAP-CT00081 Environmental Services 470 419 51 20 50 469 -1
Air Quality Monitoring Equipment 40CBCAP-CT00001 Safer & Stronger Commur] 40 28 12 0 27 55 15
Holmes Chapel Toilets 40CACAP-CT00080 Environmental Services 74 4 69 0 0 4 -70
Art in a Roundabout way 40CBCAP-CT00002 Safer & Stronger Commur] 32 12 20 0 0 12 -20
Street Furniture 40CACAP-CT00064 Environmental Services 31 26 5 0 3 2 31 0
Highway Adoption - Talke Road 40CACAP-CT00082 Environmental Services 7 0 7 0 7 7 0
Antrobus Street Car Park 40CACAP-CT00083 Safer & Stronger Commur] 80 25 55 84 84 109 29
The Crescent - Car Park Provision 40CACAP-CT00065 Safer & Stronger Commur] 7 5 2 0 2 7 1
Highway Adoption - Springvale 40CACAP-CT00084 Environmental Services 18 14 5 0 5 19 1
Vehicle & Plant Replacement 40CDCAP-TT00001 Environmental Services 415 237 26 0 26 263 -152
Crematorium Plant Repairs 40CACAP-CM00056 Environmental Services 275 110 55 0 55 55 55 275 0
Jordangate MSCP 40CACAP-CM00055 Safer & Stronger Commur] 564 530 40 1 40 570 6
Alderley Edge CCTV 40CACAP-CM00051 Safer & Stronger Commur] 66 8 57 34 57 65 -1
South Drive Car Park 40CACAP-CM00053 Safer & Stronger Commur] 100 0 100 0 100 100 0
Spring Street Car Park 40CACAP-CM00054 Safer & Stronger Commur] 3,743 3,743 0 0 0 3,743 0
Disabled Facilities Grants 40CCCAP-CH00004 & 4(Planning & Policy 1,832 1,484 348 258 348 1,832 0
Victoria Street Car Park Lighting Renovation 40CACAP-CN00050 Safer & Stronger Commur] 30 1 19 0 19 30 0
Outdoor Market Covered Stand 40CACAP-CN00071 Environmental Services 200 0 200 0 0 0 -200
Car Park Works and Pay & Display Thomas St Car Park (East) 40CACAP-CN00069 Safer & Stronger Commur] 128 2 126 117 126 128 0
Market Square, Crewe - Interim Improvements 40CDCAP-CN00018 Regeneration 150 99 51 76 79 178 28
West Street Environmental Improvements 40CDCAP-CN00070 Regeneration 520 3 517 479 517 520 0

Gg abed



CHESHIRE EAST - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2009-10
Three Quarter Review 2009-10

Appendix 3

Total Prior In Year Actuals Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total Forecast | Variance From
Department/Scheme Project Number Department Agz(r;;\:d Year Spend Budget To eng: f Novy Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure Expenditure Totatlnﬁir;zoved
2009-10 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Social Housing Grants/ Enabling Affordable Housing 40CCCAP-CN00070 Planning & Policy 1,062 0 1,062 0 1,062 1,062 0
Affordable Housing Initiatives 40CCCAP-CT00005 Planning & Policy 869 401 468 0 468 869 0
Alley Gating 40CBCAP-CH00002 Safer & Stronger Commur| 497 468 29 32 29 497 0
CCTV Control Room Relocation 40CBCAP-CN00001 Safer & Stronger Commur] 290 0 290 0 290 290 0
CCTV Cameras 40CBCAP-CH00003 Safer & Stronger Commur] 65 7 58 0 58 65 0
New Cemetery Land/ Infrastructure - Pyms Lane 40CACAP-CN00073 Environmental Services 107 87 20 0 0 87 -20
New Cemetery Land/ Infrastructure -  Weston 40CACAP-CH00013 Environmental Services 144 0 144 0 0 0 -144
Housing Energy Efficiency Grants 40CCCAP-CH00008 Planning & Policy 101 98 3 0 0 98 -3
Leighton Brook Park 40CDCAP-CN00021 Regeneration 385 137 248 222 248 385 0
Capital Programme Management Support 40CDCAP-CH00009 Regeneration 20 1 19 1 50 51 31
Quakers Coppice 40CDCAP-CN00023 Regeneration 47 0 47 40 47 47 0
Nantwich Market Town Initiative 40CCCAP-CNO00071 Regeneration 26 11 15 0 0 11 -15
Nantwich Old Mill Wall 40CCCAP-CN00072 Regeneration 38 15 23 0 0 15 -23
Project Development - Alderley Edge By Pass 40CDCAP-CM00002 Regeneration 3,415 3,415 0 73 70 3,485 70
Business Development Land Acquisition 40CDCAP-CN00071 Regeneration 500 0 500 0 0 0 -500
Housing Grants - S106 Funded (Ex MBC) 40CCCAP-CM00001 Planning & Policy 1,045 286 759 0 759 1,045 0
Waste Transfer Station (Crewe & Nantwich) 40CACAP-WN00003 Environmental Services 46 0 46 0 46 46 0
Total On-going schemes 89,661 25,476 39,108 17,035 36,960 22,506 3,277 0 88,219 -1,442
New Starts 2009-10

CDRP - Building Safer Communities Fund 40CBCAP-CH00001 Safer & Stronger Commur] 80 0 80 0 80 80 0
CDRP - Alley Gating 40CACAP-CH00005 Safer & Stronger Commur] 25 0 25 0 25 25 0
LTP - Principal Roads Maintenance Various Environmental Services 1,143 0 1,143 416 1,387 1,387 244
LTP - Principal Roads Maintenance - Asset Management Various Regeneration 76 0 76 0 76 76 0
LTP - Non Principal Roads Maintenance Various Environmental Services 2,289 0 2,289 966 2,785 2,785 496
LTP - Non Principal Roads Maintenance - Asset Management Various Regeneration 60 0 60 0 60 60 0
LTP - Crewe Infrastructure Project 40CDCAP-CN00002 Regeneration 594 344 250 8 50 200 594 0
LTP - Crewe Green Link Road 40CACAP-CN00005 Regeneration 8,394 8,093 300 44 200 90 8,383 -11
LTP - A533 Middlewich Eastern By Pass 40CDCAP-CT00001 Regeneration 825 363 400 0 50 350 763 -62
LTP - East Cheshire Transport Study 40CDCAP-CH00006 Regeneration 150 0 150 21 150 150 0
LTP - Road Safety Schemes 40CACAP-C09B10001 |Regeneration 204 0 204 0 204 204 0
LTP - Road Safety Schemes - Rail incursion measures 40CACAP-CH00012 Regeneration 80 0 80 0 80 80 0
LTP - Road Safety Grant 40CACAP-C09B10001 |Environmental Services 449 0 220 0 220 229 449 0
LTP - Safer Routes to Schools 40CDCAP-C09B10003 |Regeneration 266 0 266 24 190 76 266 0
LTP - Bus Quality Partnerships/Public Transport Inf 40CDCAP-TH00002 Regeneration 285 0 285 69 200 85 285 0
LTP - Demand Management 40CDCAP-CH00007 Regeneration 24 0 24 0 0 24 24 0
LTP - Project Development Schemes - Minor Schemes 40CDCAP-CHO00008 Regeneration 89 0 89 0 19 19 -70
LTP - Local Area Programmes - North 40CACAP-C09B10006 |Environmental Services 219 0 219 9 175 44 219 0
LTP - Local Area Programmes - South 40CACAP-C09B10007 |Environmental Services 377 0 377 28 264 264 -113
LTP - Local Area Programmes - South - Nantwich Directional Signing 40CACAP-CN00045 Environmental Services 130 0 130 138 130 130 0
LTP - SEMMMS - Regeneration allocation - Major Projects 40CDCAP-CM02B10005 |Regeneration 187 0 187 35 187 187 0
LTP - SEMMMS - Transport element - BQP/PTI Various Regeneration 200 0 200 8 200 200 0
LTP - SEMMMS - Environment Services allocation 40CACAP-CM00052 & C|Environmental Services 1,157 0 1,157 0 937 221 1,158 1
LTP - Detrunked Roads Maintenance - Major Scheme 40CACAP-MH00061 Environmental Services 687 0 687 495 800 800 113
LTP - Bridge Maintenance Various Environmental Services 1,267 0 1,264 404 1,207 1,207 -60
LTP - Highway Maintenance Various Environmental Services 968 0 968 0 0 0 -968
LTP - Fixed Fee - Capitalised Salaries - Environmental Services 40CACAP-CH00023 Environmental Services 1,283 0 1,283 0 1,283 1,283 0
LTP - Fixed Fee - Capitalised Salaries - Regeneration 40CDCAP-CHO00017 Environmental Services 175 0 175 0 175 175 0
Waste Infrastructure Capital Grant 40CACAP-WH00002 Environmental Services 658 0 658 460 658 658 0
Disabled Facilities Grants 40CCCAP-CHO00001 Planning & Policy 1,070 0 1,070 317 1,070 1,070 0
Private Sector Assistance Initiative 40CCCAP-CH00002 Planning & Policy 1,481 0 1,481 464 1,481 1,481 0
Affordable Housing - Assisted Purchase Scheme 40CCCAP-CH00003 Planning & Policy 600 0 600 5 600 600 0
Vehicle Replacement 40CDCAP-TH00001 Regeneration 500 0 500 0 0 0 -500
Development of land at Alderley Edge Cemetery 40CACAP-CM00040 Environmental Services 100 0 100 2 100 100 0
Car Park Charges Congleton 40CACAP-CH00006 Safer & Stronger Commur] 160 0 160 2 160 160 0
Thomas Street Car Park 40CACAP-CN00044 Safer & Stronger Commur] 105 0 105 0 105 105 0
CCTV System review 40CBCAP-CH00007 Safer & Stronger Commur] 50 0 50 0 50 50 0
East UTC System 40CACAP-CH00008 Environmental Services 50 0 50 0 50 50 0
Section 278's - 09-10 New Starts Various Regeneration 37 0 25 5 12 14 26 -11
Transport Asset Management Grant 40CDCAP-CHO00015 Regeneration 162 0 162 36 132 30 162 0
Cheshire Safer Roads Partnership 40CDCAP-CHO00016 Environmental Services 606 405 201 -2 201 606 0
Tatton Park - Conservatory/Orangery TBA Regeneration 0 0 0 0 160 160 160
Total 2009-10 New bids approved 27,263 9,206 17,750 3,954 15,913 1,363 0 0 26,481 -781
Total Places Programme 116,924 34,681 56,858 20,989 52,873 23,869 3,277 0 114,700 -2,224

9g abed



CHESHIRE EAST - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2009-10
Three Quarter Review 2009-10

Appendix 3

Total Prior In Year Actuals Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total Forecast | Variance From

Department/Scheme Project Number Department Agz(r;;:d Year Spend Budget To eng: f Novy Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure Expenditure Totatlnﬁir;zoved
2009-10 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Borough Solicitor (Monitoring Officer)
2009-10 New Starts
Integrated Legal ICT System 40GBC36105 Legal Services 60 0 45 0 60 60 0
Total 2009-10 New Starts 60 0 45 0 0 60 0 0 60 0
Total Borough Solicitor Programme 60 0 45 0 0 60 0 0 60 0
Borough Treasurer & Assets
Ongoing schemes
Disability Compliance Work 40EDC30304 Assets 498 469 29 44 44 513 15
Building Alteration & Improvements 40EDC30301 Assets 155 77 78 48 52 26 155 0
ICT Investment 40EFC30501 ICT 248 148 100 -2 0 148 -100
Transforming Cheshire - Information Management 40EFCTCIMO1 ICT 1,484 521 224 0 224 36 703 1,484 0
County Farms 2008-09 40ECC30202 Assets 362 124 238 131 131 107 362 0
County Farms 2007-08 40ECC30201 Assets 696 696 0 0 0 696 0
Transforming Cheshire - Improving Oracle (Shared Services) 40EHC30202 ICT 1,770 732 1,038 0 400 638 1,770 0
Data Centre 40EFC30513 ICT 1,294 752 542 0 542 1,294 0
Municipal buildings - Reg accommodation (name Change) 40EDC30302 Assets 200 0 200 0 0 200 200 0
Network Optimisation 40EFC30511 ICT 0 0 0 0 0 0
New Developments - Schemes under £100k 40EFC30512 ICT 5 0 5 0 0 0 -5
Transforming Cheshire - Information Management 40EFCTCIMO02 ICT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transforming Cheshire - County Farms Disp Assets 184 184 0 0 0 184 0
County Farms 2005-06 Assets 1,476 1,476 0 0 0 1,476 0
Internet 40EFC30514 ICT 70 0 70 0 0 0 -70
CRAG Phase 4 40EFC30515 ICT 10 0 10 0 0 0 -10
Shared Services 40EFC30516 ICT 5 0 5 0 0 0 -5
e-Payments 40EFC30517 ICT 6 0 6 0 0 0 -6
UPS for Core CCC 40EFC30518 ICT 12 0 12 0 0 0 -12
CLI for 999 calls 40EFC30519 ICT 2 0 2 0 0 0 -2
Network Readiness 40EFC30520 ICT 69 50 19 0 0 50 -19
MS Projects Server 40EFC30521 ICT 2 0 2 0 0 0 -2
Time Recording using Business Objects 40EFC30522 ICT 2 0 2 0 0 0 -2
Internet Extension to districts 40EFC30523 ICT 3 0 3 0 0 0 -3
Archiving and Managing Legacy 40EFC30524 ICT 35 17 18 0 0 17 -18
Windows 2003 Corp Serv Upgrade 40EFC30525 ICT 245 215 30 0 0 215 -30
Upgrade to Corporate Telephone 40EFC30526 ICT 1,643 1,607 36 0 0 1,607 -36
CSBS (rename HR shared services) 40EFC30527 ICT 899 862 37 0 37 899 0
NHS LINK / Connected Cheshire 40EFC30528 ICT 80 69 11 0 11 80 0
Real Time Monitoring 40EFC30529 ICT 68 23 45 0 0 23 -45
Electronic Social Care 40EFC30530 ICT 47 11 36 0 0 11 -36
Integrated Children's Centre 40EFC30531 ICT 367 334 33 31 33 367 0
ICT Small Projects Block New centre to be set up 0 0 0 0 301 0 0 0 301 301
Wheelock St 40EDC30308 Assets 112 12 100 0 0 12 -100
Urgent Safety Works 40EBCAP11877 Assets 37 18 19 0 0 1 19 -18
Fixed Electrical Installation 40EBCAP11873 Assets 200 68 132 0 0 85 153 -47
Asbestos Remedial Works |40EBCAP11871 Assets 64 60 4 0 0 0 60 -4
Premise Improvement Works 40EDCAP11875 Assets 310 303 7 0 0 0 303 -7
Westfields Entrance Improvement Works 40EDCAP11893 Assets 9 0 9 0 9 9 0
Fire Risks Assessment 40EBCAP754018 Assets 306 230 76 108 108 338 32
Church Walls 40EBCAP754033 Assets 60 12 48 0 48 60 0
CRM Integration 40EFC30533 ICT 7 0 7 0 7 7 0
Customer First - Remote Sites 40EFC30534 ICT 17 0 17 0 17 17 0
Telephone IP Extension to Remote Sites 40EFC30535 ICT 5 0 5 0 5 5 0
Backup Switchboard 40EFC30536 ICT 6 0 6 0 6 6 0
Server Replacement 40EFC30537 ICT 163 144 19 0 19 163 0
Fluency Changes & Reporting 40EFC30538 ICT 10 0 10 0 10 10 0
Disability Discrimination Act Improvements/ Adaptations 40EBCAP40502 Assets 264 121 143 4 143 264 0
Public Building Repairs 40EBCAP40810 to 40EB{Assets 1,164 451 713 248 713 1,164 0
Minor Works 2007-08 40EDCAPMWKBFWD  [Assets 103 85 18 0 18 103 0
Minor Works 2006-07 40EDCAPMWKBFWD  [Assets 138 70 68 30 68 138 0
Total On-going schemes 14,912 9,942 4,232 642 2,946 1,093 703 0 14,684 -228

/g obed



CHESHIRE EAST - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2009-10
Three Quarter Review 2009-10

Appendix 3

Total Prior In Year Actuals Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Total Forecast | Variance From

Department/Scheme Project Number Department Agz(r;;\:d Year Spend Budget To eng: f Nov Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure Expenditure Totatlnﬁir;zoved
2009-10 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
2009-10 New Bids
Office Accommodation Strategy 40EDC30303 Assets 9,450 0 2,350 1,376 2,969 6,481 0 9,450 0
Farms Estates Reorganisation & Reinvestment 40ECC30203 Assets 1,410 0 1,410 3 160 1,250 1,410 0
Single Revenue & Benefits Systems 40EGC30601 Finance 444 0 444 0 150 294 444 0
Building Maintenance Programme 40EBCAP000091001 Assets 5,645 0 5,645 1,063 5,445 200 5,645 0
Development Management System 40EFC30502 ICT 437 0 437 0 437 437 0
ICT Transitional Development Programme 40EFC30503 ICT 1,295 0 1,295 9 1,295 1,295 0
Click into Cheshire 40EFC30504 ICT 39 0 39 0 39 39 0
Government Connect 40EFC30505 ICT 290 0 290 0 118 172 290 0
Essential Replacement of Core ICT Infrastructure 40EFC30506 ICT 891 0 891 2 713 178 891 0
ICT Security & Research 40EFC30507 ICT 209 0 209 0 167 42 209 0
Enterprise Content Management proposal 40EFC30508 ICT 500 0 500 9 200 300 500 0
Flexible & Mobile Working 40EFC30509 ICT 1,425 0 585 7 292 593 540 1,425 0
Oracle Migration/Cutover Activities 40EFC30510 ICT 51 0 51 0 51 51 0
Data Centre Macclesfield 40EFC30539 ICT 495 0 495 0 170 325 495 0
Energy Efficiency Savings 40EECAPENERGY0910 |Assets 75 0 75 0 75 75 0
Total 2009-10 New bids 22,656 0 14,716 2,469 12,281 9,835 540 0 22,656 0
Total Borough Treasurer & Assets Programme 37,567 9,942 18,948 3,111 15,227 10,928 1,243 0 37,340 -227
Policy & Performance
On-going schemes
Transforming Cheshire - Customer Access 40HBCTC40100 Customer Services 428 207 36 2 36 185 428 0
Customer Access 40HBC40101 Customer Services 262 188 74 2 74 262 0
Excelcis 40HCC40201 Planning & Performance 10 0 10 0 10 10 0
Capital Investment Scheme Grants 40HEC40401 Partnerships & CE’s 400 23 377 76 277 100 400 0
Total On-going schemes 1,100 418 497 80 397 100 185 0 1,100 0
2009-10 New Bids
Customer Relationship Management & Telephone System 40HBC40102 Customer Services 1,705 0 1,705 0 1,150 555 1,705 0
Performance Management System code to be set up Customer Services 0 0 0 0 100 100 100
Total 2009-10 New bids 1,705 0 1,705 0 1,250 555 0 0 1,805 100
Total Policy & Performance Programme 2,805 418 2,202 80 1,647 655 185 0 2,905 100
HR & Organisational Development
2009-10 New Bids
Accident Reporting system New scheme code to be set up HR 0 0 0 0 18 18 18
Total 2009-10 New bids 1] 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 18 18
Total HR & Organisational Development Programme 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 18 18
Total Committed schemes approved by Council 196,446 86,753 73,427 32,969 67,575 34,841 5,435 350 194,954 -1,492
Total New bids 09-10 - Approved by Council 83,195 9,206 49,041 8,854 37,593 31,971 3,776 50 82,596 -599
Total 2009-10 Programme for On-going & approved new starts 279,641 95,959 122,468 41,823 105,168 66,812 9,211 400 277,550 -2,091
Total Cheshire East 2009-10 Capital Programme 279,641 95,959 122,468 41,823 105,168 66,812 9,211 400 277,550 -2,091

g8 abed



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous meeting
	5 Key Decision CE09/10-07  Free Early Years Childcare For 3-4 Year Olds, Funding Formula
	6 Key Decision CE09/10-31 New Provision  for Adults with Learning Difficulties
	7 Financial Update Three Quarter Year Review
	Appendix 1
	App A Remedial Action Plan People
	App B Remedial Action Plan places
	App C  Remedial Action Plan  PC
	Capital appendix 2a for TQR 2009-10
	Capital appendix 2b for TQR 2009-10
	Capital appendix 2c for TQR 2009-10
	Capital Appendix 3 Full TQR 2009-10


